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Introduction
The Public Accounts of the Province of Prince Edward Island are presented through the
publication of Volume I, the audited consolidated financial statements, Volume II, the financial
statements of the Operating Fund and the details of revenues and expenses of the Operating
Fund, and Volume III (Part A and Part B) which presents a reproduction of the available audited
financial statements of the Province’s Agencies, Boards and Crown Corporations.

Internet Address – Volumes I, II, and III (Part A and B) of the Public Accounts are available in
PDF format on the Province’s Website:
https://www.princeedwardisland.ca/en/topic/public-accounts
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Management's Report
The integrity, relevance and comparability of the data in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of management.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies is disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves
the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.
To meet its responsibility, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Finance PEI on matters of financial reporting and
internal controls. Management provides the Board with internal consolidated financial statements on a monthly
basis and externally audited consolidated financial statements annually. The Board also discusses any
significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the consolidated financial
statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by ArsenaultBestCameronEllis, independent external
auditors appointed by the Corporation. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of Finance PEI

___________________________________
Jamie Aiken, CPA, CA
Chief Executive Officer of Finance PEI
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June 29, 2021
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Finance PEI
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Finance PEI, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statements of
operations, accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Finance PEI as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Finance PEI in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Finance PEI’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Finance PEI or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Finance PEI’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Finance PEI’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Finance PEI's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Finance PEI
to cease to continue as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2021
2021

2020

$

$

Assets
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (notes 2 and 10)
Loans receivable (note 3)
Advances to related company (note 10)
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island (note 10)

2,965,903
1,611,786
217,387,606
39,292
11,163,647

18,837,195
666,061
196,823,415
39,292
11,163,650

233,168,234

227,529,613

2,156,935
1,159,098
24,347,681
39,255,122
167,506,031

2,159,722
1,202,092
19,003,442
42,505,122
153,155,059

234,424,867

218,025,437

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10)
Deferred revenue
Advances from related companies (note 10)
Short-term notes payable (note 5)
Long-term debt (note 6)

Net financial assets (debt)

(1,256,633)

9,504,176

70,606
565,795
277,402
37,429,415

97,904
593,538
285,664
28,147,802

38,343,218

29,124,908

37,086,585

38,629,084

Contingent liabilities
Commitments (note 9)
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Net investment in lease (note 7)
Foreclosed properties (note 8)
Property holdings (notes 6 and 10) (Schedule 2)

Accumulated surplus

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021

2020

$

$

Accumulated surplus - Beginning of year

38,629,084

Operating surplus (deficit)

(1,542,499)

Accumulated surplus - End of year

37,086,585

(4)

38,419,008
210,076
38,629,084
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Budget
(Unaudited)
$

Actual

Actual

2021

2020

$

$

Revenue
Interest from borrowers
Interest from deposits
Property operations (note 10)
Management fees (note 10)
Grant income
Gain (loss) on sale of property holdings
Miscellaneous

Expenses (notes 6 and 10) (Schedule 1)
Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for possible losses

Operating surplus (deficit)

(5)

9,900,000
26,200
4,475,000
500,000
131,000

11,417,091
24,904
5,014,457
500,000
11,125
(222,001)
121,271

10,352,541
24,419
4,900,283
497,826
133,424
887,722
197,605

15,032,200

16,866,847

16,993,820

735,900
5,789,500
4,582,000
5,450,000

1,022,186
5,999,607
5,257,582
6,129,971

818,200
5,741,848
5,231,400
4,992,296

16,557,400

18,409,346

16,783,744

(1,525,200)

(1,542,499)

210,076



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,3$57$

Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Operating surplus (deficit)

2021

2020

$

$

(1,542,499)

Acquisition of property holdings
Amortization of property holdings
Loss (gain) on disposal of property holdings
Proceeds on disposal of property holdings
Transfer of provision to foreclosed properties
Additions to foreclosed properties

(11,991,139)
1,807,986
222,001
679,539
14,334
(6,072)
(9,273,351)

210,076
(1,062,607)
1,618,846
(887,722)
994,923
(7,762)
655,678

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses

27,298

(11,770)

Decrease in net investment in lease

27,743

26,711

Decrease (increase) in net debt

(9,218,310)

670,619

(10,760,809)

880,695

Net financial assets - Beginning of year

9,504,176

8,623,481

Net financial assets (debt) - End of year

(1,256,633)

9,504,176

(6)
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Finance PEI
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021

2020

$

$

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Operating surplus (deficit)
Items not affecting cash
Amortization
Decrease in net investment in lease
Provision for possible losses
Loss (gain) on disposal of property holdings

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease in deferred revenue

Financing activities
Increase in advances from related companies
Increase in short-term notes payable
Repayment of short-term notes payable
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment on long-term debt

Investing activities
Increase in loans receivable
Additions to and purchases of property holdings
Reductions and proceeds on disposal of property holdings
Additions to foreclosed properties
Payments received on investment in private companies

Change in cash
Cash - Beginning of year
Cash - End of year

(7)

(1,542,499)

210,076

1,807,986
27,743
6,129,971
222,001

1,618,846
26,711
4,990,320
(887,722)

6,645,202

5,958,231

(945,725)
27,298
(2,787)
(42,994)

76,786
(11,770)
415,415
(68,728)

5,680,994

6,369,934

5,344,238
11,500,000
(14,750,000)
36,000,000
(21,649,028)

4,173,376
30,750,000
(440,000)
16,450,000
(16,135,861)

16,445,210

34,797,515

(26,779,824)
(11,991,139)
679,539
(6,072)
100,000

(24,785,600)
(1,062,607)
994,923
(7,762)
240,000

(37,997,496)

(24,621,046)

(15,871,292)

16,546,403

18,837,195

2,290,792

2,965,903

18,837,195
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

1

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of CPA Canada. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements:
a) General
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the wholly-owned subsidiaries, Atlantic
Technology Centre Inc., P.E.I. Infrastructure Inc. and 100417 P.E.I. Inc., all having March 31, 2021 year
ends.
b) Cash
Cash is comprised of cash on hand and cash in banks and is recorded at cost.
c) Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable arise from tenant rents, trade sales, staff advance and Harmonized Sales Tax
receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been calculated through discussions by management,
assessment of the other circumstances influencing the collectibility of amounts, and using historical loss
experience. Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off and deducted from the carrying value of the
receivable. Amounts subsequently recovered from accounts previously written off are credited to the
allowance account in the period of recovery.
d) Loans receivable
Loans are recorded at amortized cost less an allowance for possible losses.
An impaired loan is a loan where in management’s opinion there is no longer reasonable assurance as to the
timely collection of the full amount of principal and interest. Allowances for possible losses are calculated
on loans receivable as outlined in note 1j).
e) Due from Province of Prince Edward Island
The amount due from Province of Prince Edward Island is funding receivable related to the allowance for
possible credit losses.
f) Investments in private companies
Investment in private companies, except for two preferred share investments not considered to be
concessionary, are recorded at one-half of cost. An expense of 50% was charged to development programs
when the funds were invested. The remaining cost is reduced by any applicable allowance for possible
losses. Any recovery exceeding the balance in share investment is taken into revenue when received.

(8)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

The two investments in preferred shares of private companies that are not being carried at one-half of their
cost are being carried at the lower of cost and estimated realizable value.
Investment in private companies are reviewed annually for potential declines in value and are written down
or an allowance is recorded if a decline in value is considered evident. Write downs are included in lending
operations expense.
It is not practical within the constraints of timeliness and cost to determine the fair market value of the
investment in private companies as these investments are in closely held private companies that have no
organized financial market. The estimated realizable value of these investments is based on expected future
cash flows.
g) Net investment in lease
Net investment in lease represents the net present value of the minimum lease payments receivable over the
term of the lease plus the purchase option for leases with a deferred purchase option.
h) Property holdings, foreclosed properties and amortization
i)

Property holdings
Property holdings are reported at the lower of cost and estimated realizable value. Property holdings
are amortized using the straight-line method at the following annual rates:
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Buildings
Equipment

10%
7%
14 - 30 years
20%, 33% and 100%

Proceeds on the sale of land included in industrial sites is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value
of the asset.
ii)

Foreclosed properties
Foreclosed properties are carried at the lower of cost of the impaired asset prior to realization of the
related security and the underlying estimated realizable value of the security.
Reductions from the carrying value of the impaired asset to estimated realizable value is recorded as a
provision for possible losses.

iii) Estimated realizable value
Estimated realizable value for foreclosed properties, land and buildings held for resale and industrial
site buildings, is its property tax assessed value. Estimated realizable value for industrial sites is the
expected proceeds on resale. If property and equipment carrying value should exceed estimated
realizable value, additional amortization or a writedown is provided.

(9)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

i) Deferred revenue
Government contributions received and not expended on land purchases and grants to finance future
infrastructure costs and contributions to occupants of the Biocommons park are recorded as deferred
revenue.
j) Allowance for possible losses
An allowance for possible losses is maintained which is considered adequate to absorb all credit and
investment related losses of financial position items including guarantees. The allowance is deducted from
the applicable asset on the statement of financial position, except for guarantees. The allowance for
guarantees is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
The allowance consists of specific and general provisions.
Specific provisions include the accumulated allowances for losses on particular assets required to reduce
the book values to estimated realizable amounts. Specific provisions for loans receivable, accounts
receivable, investments in private companies and foreclosed properties total $16,993,432 (2020 $17,638,044).
The Corporation does not accrue interest on a loan receivable once a specific provision has been recorded
against the loan.
The Corporation reviews its loans portfolio accounts receivable, investments and advances, foreclosed
properties and property holdings and guarantees on an ongoing basis to assess whether an allowance is
required.
A variety of methods are used to determine the amount expected to be recovered from accounts receivable,
loans receivable, investments in and advances to private companies and property holdings, including
estimated future cash flows and the estimated fair value of the underlying security and value of any
collateral security taken.
A general provision of $26,295,250 (2020 - $19,529,051) includes accumulated allowances for losses
which are prudential in nature and are not specifically identified. The general provision is based on past
performance of similar assets, the level of the specific provision, management's judgment, the economic
climate and the maturity and financial strength of the investee.
k) Employee pension plan
The Corporation's staff are members of the Province of Prince Edward Island pension plan. The pension
plan obligation is a liability of the Province and not Finance PEI and no liability for these costs has been
accrued by the Corporation at March 31, 2021.
l) Post retirement benefits
The Corporation provides retirement benefits to eligible employees. The benefit is based on one week's
salary per year of service to a maximum of 26 weeks and is expensed on an accrual basis.

(10)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

m) Revenue recognition
Interest on loans from borrowers is recognized as revenue in the period earned except where a loan is
classified as impaired. Interest earned on an impaired loan is recognized as revenue only when it has been
received.
Revenue from property operations are recorded when collection is reasonably assured and all other
significant conditions of service are met.
Revenue from service fees, post-receivership income, management fees and miscellaneous income are
recorded when earned and collection is reasonably assured.
Government contributions and interest from deposits are recorded in the period earned.
n) Government transfers
Government transfers are the transfer of assets from various levels of government that are not the result of
an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial return.
Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which events
giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been
met, and reasonable estimates on the amounts can be determined.
o) Financial instruments
(a) Measurement of financial instruments
Finance PEI's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, loans receivable, advances to
company, due from Province of Prince Edward Island, investment in private companies, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, short-term notes payable, long-term debt and advances from related
companies.
The company initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted by, in
the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value, the amount of
transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument. This fair value amount is then deemed to be
the amortized cost of the financial instrument.
The company subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost.
(b) Impairment
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of
possible impairment. When a significant adverse change has occurred during the period in the
expected timing or amount of future cash flows from the financial asset or group of assets, a writedown is recognized in net earnings. The write-down reflects the difference between the carrying
amount and the higher of:

(11)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

i)

The present value of the cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or group of assets;

ii)

The amount that could be realized by selling the asset or group of assets;

iii)

The net realizable value of any collateral held to secure repayment of the asset or group of
assets.

When events occurring after the impairment confirm that a reversal is necessary, the reversal is
recognized in net earnings up to the amount of the previously recognized impairment.
p) Management estimates and judgments
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the year. Actual results could differ from the following estimates:
!

The amount recorded regarding the allowance for possible credit losses is subject to management's
assessment of the performance of the company's loans receivable, investments and accounts receivable
as well as the valuation of the assets placed as security;

!

The amount recorded for amortization of property holdings on the statement of operations is subject to
management's assessment of the estimated useful life of the company's property holdings;

!

The recognized amounts of potential claims and liabilities depend on management's assessment of
future costs and the probability these events will occur; and

!

Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus) has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have
caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global
equity markets have experienced significant volatility. The duration and impact of the COVID-19
outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
In management's estimation, these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2021. The duration and
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the
financial position and results of the company for future periods.

(12)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

2

Accounts receivable
2021
$
Trade accounts receivable
HST receivable
Other

1,530,161
558,139
355,152

1,003,458
136,311
368,011

Allowance for possible losses

2,443,452
(831,666)

1,507,780
(841,719)

1,611,786

666,061

Continuity of allowance for possible losses
Beginning of year
Less: recovery during the year

3

2020
$

841,719
(10,053)

857,143
(15,424)

831,666

841,719

Loans receivable
2021
Allowance
for possible
losses
General
$

Allowance
for possible
losses
Specific
$

2,692,567
2,234,056
3,080,073
2,719,196
12,366,544

1,340,727
33,086
212,772
3,070,268

1,056,843
278,238
558,917

294,997
2,200,970
2,589,063
2,719,196
8,737,359

9,175
2,255,800
2,519,349
2,352,903
3,127,885

23,092,436

4,656,853

1,893,998

16,541,585

10,265,112

34,488,448
25,606,848
22,595,957
117,305,875
29,325,040
2,419,910
10,000
18,165

3,929,419
6,486,000
1,715,203
7,675,000
1,590,776
241,991
-

3,532,175
351,430
1,931,999
1,368,690
2,091,539
10,000
-

27,026,854
18,769,418
18,948,755
108,262,185
25,642,725
2,177,919
18,165

26,791,642
16,073,523
22,594,627
95,911,669
23,931,436
1,216,679
38,727

231,770,243

21,638,389

9,285,833

200,846,021

186,558,303

254,862,679

26,295,242

11,179,831

217,387,606

196,823,415

Total
$
Working capital loans
Agriculture
Tourism
Manufacturing and processing
Fisheries
Small business

Long-term loans
Agriculture
Tourism
Manufacturing and processing
Fisheries and aquaculture
Small business
Residential
Shipbuilding/Shipping
Eco energy

2020

(13)

Net
$

Net
$
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

Working capital loans are repayable over various terms to a maximum of 5 years with interest rates ranging
from 4.95% to 8.45%.
Long-term loans are repayable over various terms to a maximum of 10 years with interest rates ranging from
4.00% to 9.25%.
Security for working capital loans and long-term loans consists of promissory notes, land, building, inventory
and personal guarantees from the borrowers.

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

4

2021

2020

$

$

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Add: Provision recorded during year
Less: Recoveries during year
Less: Loans written off

31,257,775
7,270,859
(1,053,199)
-

26,172,364
5,770,982
(663,071)
(22,500)

Allowance for possible losses - End of year

37,475,435

31,257,775

Investment in private companies

Investment in private companies
Small Business and Venture Capital Equity Program investments
Less: Allowance for possible losses

2021

2020

$

$

438,910
(438,910)

438,910
(438,910)

Investment in preferred shares of private companies
Less: Allowance for possible losses

42,812
(42,812)

142,812
(142,812)

-

-

-

-

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Less: Recovery during the year
Allowance for possible losses - End of year

(14)

2021

2020

$

$

581,722
(100,000)

681,909
(100,187)

481,722

581,722
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

5

Short-term notes payable

Demand note payable to Island Investment Development Inc.
Demand notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island

2021

2020

$

$

6,998,482
32,256,640

6,998,482
35,506,640

39,255,122

42,505,122

The demand notes payable to Island Investment Development Inc. includes a $15,000,000 available operating
line of credit with an outstanding balance at March 31, 2021 of $6,998,482 (2020 - $6,998,482).
The demand note to Island Investment Development Inc. is secured by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and
a revolving credit agreement. The demand notes to Province of Prince Edward Island are unsecured.
Demand notes payable are issued by Island Investment Development Inc and the Province of Prince Edward
Island with interest set monthly based on the Province's short-term lending rate in existence at the first day of
the month. These notes are renewed on an ongoing basis with interest payable monthly.
Interest paid by Finance PEI on short-term notes payable is included in the expenditure category to which it
relates. Included is interest for 2021 in the amount of $222,198 (2020 - $296,396).

(15)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

6

Long-term debt

4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., no
specific repayment terms
4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., no
specific repayment terms
4.00% note payable to Island Investment Development Inc., due
April 2018, repayable $8,165 monthly including principal
and interest
2.31% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
August 22, 2023, repayable in $260,127 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
6.01% note payable, due December 2024, repayable $88,025
monthly including principal and interest
5.54% note payable, due December 2024, repayable $7,969
monthly including principal and interest
3.46% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
March 31, 2031, repayable in $32,366 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
3.23% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
June 1, 2032, repayable in $342,453 annual payments
including principal and interest
3.03% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
November 30, 2023, repayable in $189,252 quarterly
payments including principal and interest
Notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island with interest
rates from 1.65% to 3.45%, maturing at various dates
between 2021 and 2026
2.03% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
January 31, 2025, repayable $10,541 quarterly including
principal and interest
2.47% note payable to Province of Prince Edward Island, due
October 31, 2040, repayable $127,028 quarterly
including principal and interest

2021

2020

$

$

556,846

556,846

1,430,499

1,430,499

935,373

977,127

1,529,695

2,520,521

3,543,381

4,362,753

323,522

399,171

1,090,472

1,180,256

3,362,442

3,588,971

1,990,176

2,673,883

144,659,650

135,265,032

161,603

200,000

7,922,372

-

167,506,031

153,155,059

Island Investment Development Inc. is a provincial Crown corporation. The repayment terms of the $556,846
and $1,430,499 loans are to be determined at a future date.
The 6.01% and 5.54% notes payable are secured by a general security agreement covering certain property
holdings with a net book value of nil.
All other notes payable are unsecured.

(16)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

The aggregate amount of principal payments estimated to be required in each of the next five years to meet
retirement provisions is as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

36,682,473
31,121,388
33,807,359
26,259,710
30,068,233

Interest paid by Finance PEI and its subsidiaries on long-term debt in the amount of $3,621,630 (2020 $3,688,355) is included in the expenditure category to which it relates.

7

Net investment in lease
Net investment in lease representing the purchase option receivable from a lessee, due December 2035.
The net investment in this lease is recorded at the net present value of the total lease payments using a discount
rate of 3.75%, calculated as follows:

Total of lease payments to be received to December 2035
Less: Portion representing interest at 3.75%
Net present value of net investment in lease

8

2021

2020

$

$

750,030
(184,235)

800,030
(206,492)

565,795

593,538

Foreclosed properties

Foreclosed projects - land, buildings and equipment held for
resale
Less: Allowance for possible losses

2021

2020

$

$

4,958,243
(4,680,841)

4,952,171
(4,666,507)

277,402

285,664

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Add: Provision recorded during the year
Allowance for possible losses - End of year

(17)

2021

2020

$

$

4,666,507

4,666,507

14,334

-

4,680,841

4,666,507
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

9

Commitments
Loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2021 total $25,671,514 (2020 - $21,961,511).

10 Related party account balances and transactions
Statement of Financial Position

Advances to related company:
Biocommons Development Inc.
Advances from related companies:
Innovation PEI
Island Investment Development Inc.
Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc.

2021

2020

$

$

39,292

39,292

11,151,050
6,044,150
7,152,481

11,065,496
5,818,648
2,119,298

24,347,681

19,003,442

The advances to/from related companies and due from the Province of Prince Edward Island, are non-interest
bearing and have no specific terms of repayment. Innovation PEI and Island Investment Development Inc. are
provincial Crown corporations. Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. is a subsidiary of a provincial
Crown corporation. Biocommons Development Inc. is a non-profit company with a similar Board of Directors
as P.E.I. Infrastructure Inc.'s Board of Directors.
Included in accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due
from/due to related parties:
2021

2020

$

$

Accounts receivable:
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island
Due from related companies

551,646
21,699

157,019
32,605

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Due to Province of Prince Edward Island
Due to related companies

302,574
738,275

302,915
748,160

Property holdings
The Province of Prince Edward Island conveys land to the Corporation periodically to be used for
development purposes. The exchange and carrying amounts of land when transferred into the Corporation is
nil.

(18)
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

Statement of operations
Included in property operations revenue is $807,018 (2020 - $793,589) from related parties and $200,000
(2020 - nil) in capital grants received from Innovation PEI, a provincial Crown corporation.
During the year, management fees of $500,000 (2020 - $497,826) were received from Island Investment
Development Inc., a provincial Crown corporation. Included in interest from borrowers revenue is
$3,810,715 (2020 - nil) and $214,799 (2020 - nil) received from the Fisheries Interest Relief Program and
Tourism Interest Relief Program, respectively. These programs were funded by the Province of Prince Edward
Island.
Included in expenditures is $3,543,135 (2020 - $3,296,918) in interest paid to Province of Prince Edward
Island and $46,035 (2020 - $154,519) in interest paid to Island Investment Development Inc., a provincial
Crown corporation.
The above transactions were recorded in the normal course of operations and measured at exchange amounts.
Other
The Corporation rents land for the annual amount of $2,120 plus applicable taxes from Slemon Park
Corporation under a fifty-year lease agreement, effective for the term September 28, 2001 to September 28,
2051.
Slemon Park Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Investment Development Inc.
During the year, Finance PEI administered the Fisheries Interest Relief Program on behalf of the Province of
Prince Edward Island. The corporation administered $10,077,061 in funds for the program. As the
corporation was acting as an agent of the Province of Prince Edward Island, this expenditure is not included as
an expense of the corporation.

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Finance PEI’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position that consists primarily of
financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting financial instruments include
credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking activities rests with the Board of
Directors, which approves risk management policies, delegates’ limits and regularly reviews management’s
risk assessments and compliance with approved policies. Qualified professionals throughout Finance PEI
manage these risks through comprehensive and integrated control processes and models, including regular
review and assessment of risk measurement and reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company’s loans
receivable.

(19)
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The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation to
each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral
or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the
financial instruments in question.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Cash
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Advances to related companies
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island

(i)

2021

2020

$

$

2,965,903
1,611,786
217,387,606
39,292
11,163,647

18,837,195
666,061
196,823,415
39,292
11,163,650

233,168,234

227,529,613

Loans receivable
For the loans receivable portfolio, the company uses risk modelling that is customer based rather
than product based. The company reviews the borrowers capacity to repay the loan rather than
relying exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing credit risk.
Typically, collateral consists of capital assets held by the borrower but can extend to working capital
assets such as inventory when warranted. Any shortfall in collateral as compared to the carrying
value of the loan is considered when analyzing the loan for the provision that needs to be applied to
it.
Credit is approved by staff and the company’s Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million
requiring approval by Treasury Board and loans in excess of $2.5 million requiring approval by
Executive Council. The company factors the financial strength of each borrower, the security
available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing all potential loans.
A loan is considered past due when a party has not made a payment by the contractual due date. The
following table presents the carrying value of loans that are past due but not classified as impaired:
0 - 60 days
$
As at:
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

60 - 120 days
$

265,173
1,123,391

732,466
682,340

(20)

+120 days
$

5,478,628
4,023,800

Total
$

6,476,267
5,829,531
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Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, advances from related companies, notes payable and mortgages as they come due.
The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its cash flows and forecast the
expected receipts and obligations.
The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.
Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Advances from related
companies
Short-term notes payable
Long-term debt

Between
1 - 5 years
$

2021

Total
$

2,156,935

-

-

2,156,935

24,347,681
39,255,122
36,682,473

121,256,690

9,566,868

24,347,681
39,255,122
167,506,031

102,442,211

121,256,690

9,566,868

233,265,769

Under 1
year
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Advances from related
companies
Short-term notes payable
Long-term debt

Over
5 years
$

Between
1 - 5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2020

Total
$

2,159,722

-

-

2,159,722

19,003,442
42,505,122
19,085,621

130,340,475

3,728,963

19,003,442
42,505,122
153,155,059

82,753,907

130,340,475

3,728,963

216,823,345

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the
company’s income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.

(21)



38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,3$57$

Finance PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. For the Corporation, mismatches in the
balances of assets, liabilities and off-statement of financial position financial instruments that mature
and reprice in varying reporting periods generate interest rate risk. These mismatches will arise
through the ordinary course of business as the Corporation manages member portfolios of loans and
deposits with changing term preferences and through the strategic positioning of the credit union to
enhance profitability.
The following table provides the potential impact of an immediate and sustained 1% increase or
decrease in interest rates on net interest income, assuming no further hedging is undertaken. These
measures are based on assumptions made by management. All interest rate risk measures are based
upon interest rate exposures at a specific time and continuously change as a result of business
activities and the Corporation’s management initiatives.
Net interest
income
change
$
Impact of
1% increase in interest rates
1% decrease in interest rates

67,420
(67,420)

Interest
expense
change
$

392,551
(392,551)

(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of Finance PEI's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
financial position in order to support its business. Finance PEI manages its capital structure and makes
changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(22)

Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for possible losses

Expenses

Administration
Lending operations
Property operations
Provision for possible losses

Expenses

For the year ended March 31, 2021

424,916
126,239
551,155

2,191,093

(23)

3,103,327

3,101,351
1,976

Property
Operations
$

Operating
Goods &
Services
$

Salaries
Benefits
$
323,048
1,444,988
423,057
-

2,825,424

673,747

2,639,279

2,825,424
-

Property
Operations
$

542,141
131,606
-

Operating
Goods &
Services
$

407,936
1,686,825
544,518
-

Salaries
Benefits
$

Consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Type

Finance PEI

5,239,613

249,293
4,990,320

Lending
Operations
$

6,619,082

489,111
6,129,971

Lending
Operations
$

4,079,711

4,047,567
32,144
-

Interest
Expense
$

3,843,828

3,823,671
20,157
-

Interest
Expense
$

1,618,845

70,236
1,548,609
-

Amortization
$

1,807,986

72,109
1,735,877
-

Amortization
$

16,783,744

818,200
5,741,848
5,231,400
4,992,296

Total
$

2020

18,409,346

1,022,186
5,999,607
5,257,582
6,129,971

Total
$

2021

Schedule 1
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11,297,737
11,991,139

45,903,095

53,175,063

600,000

2,917,605

79,448
94,725
23,313
11,049,104
51,147

600,000
-

Property holdings held for resale
Land
1,705,171
Buildings
1,212,434

3,139,663
2,923,226
1,001,339
31,505,294
7,333,573

93,402

4,354,363

Industrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equipment

93,402

Additions
$

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

General
Land
Land improvements
Building

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Schedule of Property Holdings

Finance PEI

(1,072,754)

(922,754)

(264,238)
(658,516)
-

(150,000)

(150,000)
-

-

-

Disposals
$

(24)

64,093,448

56,278,078

2,954,873
3,017,951
1,024,652
41,895,882
7,384,720

3,367,605

2,155,171
1,212,434

4,447,765

981,500
44,765
3,421,500

Disposals/
Ending
$

Cost

25,027,261

23,126,348

2,763,312
507,589
12,566,013
7,289,434

336,748

336,748

1,564,165

44,765
1,519,400

1,807,986

1,629,105

23,927
70,910
1,483,590
50,678

48,497

48,497

130,384

130,384

Beginning Amortization
$
$

(171,214)

(171,214)

(171,214)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals/
adjustments
$

Accumulated amortization

26,664,033

24,584,239

2,787,239
578,499
13,878,389
7,340,112

385,245

385,245

1,694,549

44,765
1,649,784

Ending
$

37,429,415

31,693,839

2,954,873
230,712
446,153
28,017,493
44,608

2,982,360

2,155,171
827,189

2,753,216

981,500
1,771,716

Net book
value
$

2021

Schedule 2
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1,062,607
1,062,607

45,023,984

4,937,000

57,232,952

-

2,917,605

29,687
133,424
852,801
46,695

-

Property holdings held for resale
Land
1,705,171
Buildings
1,212,434

3,109,976
2,789,802
1,001,339
30,835,989
7,286,878

-

4,354,363

Industrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equipment

-

Additions
$

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

General
Land
Land improvements
Building

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Schedule of Property Holdings

Finance PEI

(5,120,496)

(4,937,000)

(183,496)

(183,496)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
$

(25)

53,175,063

-

45,903,095

3,139,663
2,923,226
1,001,339
31,505,294
7,333,573

2,917,605

1,705,171
1,212,434

4,354,363

981,500
44,765
3,328,098

Ending
$

Cost

27,037,528

3,552,818

21,760,810

2,750,684
437,495
11,379,277
7,193,354

288,251

288,251

1,435,649

44,765
1,390,884

1,618,846

-

1,441,833

12,628
70,094
1,263,031
96,080

48,497

48,497

128,516

128,516

Beginning Amortization
$
$

(3,629,113)

(3,552,818)

(76,295)

(76,295)
-

-

-

-

-

Disposals
$

25,027,261

-

23,126,348

2,763,312
507,589
12,566,013
7,289,434

336,748

336,748

1,564,165

44,765
1,519,400

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization

28,147,802

-

22,776,747

3,139,663
159,914
493,750
18,939,281
44,139

2,580,857

1,705,171
875,686

2,790,198

981,500
1,808,698

Net book
value
$

2020

Schedule 2
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0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HVSRQVLELOLW\IRU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
0DUFK



7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGE\PDQDJHPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQ
SXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGWKHLQWHJULW\DQGREMHFWLYLW\RIWKHVHVWDWHPHQWVDUH
PDQDJHPHQW¶VUHVSRQVLELOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDOORIWKHQRWHVWRWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGVFKHGXOHVDQGIRUHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLVFRQVLVWHQW
ZKHUHDSSURSULDWHZLWKWKHLQIRUPDWLRQFRQWDLQHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV $VXPPDU\RI
VLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVLVGHVFULEHGLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDO
FRQWUROVWRSURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVSURGXFHG
7KHLQWHUQDOFRQWUROVDUHGHVLJQHGWRSURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWDVVHWVDUH
VDIHJXDUGHGWUDQVDFWLRQVDUHSURSHUO\DXWKRUL]HGDQGUHFRUGHGLQFRPSOLDQFHZLWK
OHJLVODWLYHDQGUHJXODWRU\UHTXLUHPHQWVDQGUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVDYDLODEOHRQD
WLPHO\EDVLVIRUSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

7KH%RDUGRI7UXVWHHVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV
IRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGH[HUFLVHVWKHVHUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKURXJKWKH
%RDUG 7KH%RDUGUHYLHZVH[WHUQDODXGLWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV\HDUO\ 7KH%RDUGDOVR
GLVFXVVHVDQ\VLJQLILFDQWILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJRULQWHUQDOFRQWUROPDWWHUVSULRUWRWKHLUDSSURYDO
RIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


7KHH[WHUQDODXGLWRUV*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3FRQGXFWDQLQGHSHQGHQWH[DPLQDWLRQLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGH[SUHVVWKHLURSLQLRQRQWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV 7KHH[WHUQDODXGLWRUVKDYHIXOODQGIUHHDFFHVVWRILQDQFLDOPDQDJHPHQWRIWKH
)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGDQGPHHWZKHQUHTXLUHG 7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJ$XGLWRU¶V
5HSRUWRXWOLQHVWKHLUUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKHVFRSHRIWKHLUH[DPLQDWLRQDQGWKHLURSLQLRQRQWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV


2QEHKDOIRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG





'LUHFWRURI$GPLQLVWUDWLRQDQG)LQDQFH
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Grant Thornton LLP
2nd Floor, Royal Bank Building
220 Water Street, PO Box 1660
Summerside, PE
C1N 2V5

Independent auditors’ report

T +1 902 436 9155
F +1 902 436 6913



To the Board of Trustees of the French Language School Board
2SLQLRQ
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUG ³WKH(QWLW\´ 
ZKLFK FRPSULVHWKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGWKHVWDWHPHQWVRI
RSHUDWLRQV DQGFKDQJHVLQQHWGHEWDQGFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWRWKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV LQFOXGLQJDVXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV
,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKH
ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVUHVXOWVRI
RSHUDWLRQVDQGLWVFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK &DQDGLDQSXEOLF
VHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV


%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV
2XU UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKHAuditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements VHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUH
LQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH(QWLW\LQ DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXU
DXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ &DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDO
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV :HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZH
KDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV IRURXURSLQLRQ


5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO 6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHVHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVLQ DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGIRUVXFK
LQWHUQDOFRQWURODV PDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHH IURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,Q SUHSDULQJ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV PDQDJHPHQW LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU DVVHVVLQJ WKH (QWLW\¶V
DELOLW\ WR FRQWLQXH DV D JRLQJ FRQFHUQ GLVFORVLQJ DV DSSOLFDEOH PDWWHUV UHODWHG WR D JRLQJ
FRQFHUQDQGXVLQJ WKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGV
WROLTXLGDWHWKH(QWLW\RUWR FHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRURYHUVHHLQJWKH(QWLW\¶VILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSURFHVV






$XGLW7D[$GYLVRU\
#*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3$&DQDGLDQ0HPEHURI*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,QWHUQDWLRQDO/WG
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$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROH
DUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUWWKDW
LQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDW
DQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\V
GHWHFWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHQLWH[LVWV 0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUH
FRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFH
WKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZHH[HUFLVH
SURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW :HDOVR
x

,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWR
IUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLW
HYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRW
GHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURU
DVIUDXGPD\LQYROYHFROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDORPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGH
RILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLW
SURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQ
RSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH(QWLW\ VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQW VXVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWV
RUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH(QWLW\ VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWH
WRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRI
RXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUHHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVHWKH(QWLW\WRFHDVHWR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWHWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQVWUXFWXUHDQGFRQWHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJWKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQG
HYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHG
VFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQ
LQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

6XPPHUVLGH&DQDGD
-XO\




&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV

$XGLW7D[$GYLVRU\
#*UDQW7KRUQWRQ//3$&DQDGLDQ0HPEHURI*UDQW7KRUQWRQ,QWHUQDWLRQDO/WG
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6WDWHPHQWVRI2SHUDWLRQVDQG&KDQJHVLQ1HW'HEW



<HDUHQGHG0DUFK

5HYHQXH
*UDQWV
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
3URJUDPV
5HQRYDWLRQVUHSDLUVDQG
PDLQWHQDQFH
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
2/()XQGLQJ
2WKHUUHYHQXH 1RWH 



 






([SHQVHV 1RWH 
3DJH
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
 
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ 
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ

3URJUDP

5HQRYDWLRQVUHSDLUVDQG
PDLQWHQDQFH

3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW






















([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXHV



 



 


1HWGHEWEHJLQQLQJRI\HDU







1HWGHEWHQGRI\HDU










 






  

 

([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXHV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQ



0DUFK




)LQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
5HFHLYDEOHV 1RWH 
3UHSDLGV
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQGHIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ
































)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV
*HQHUDO
6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH 1RWH 
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 1RWH
'HIHUUHGVDODU\SURJUDP

























 







1HWGHEW




  


&RQWLQJHQF\ 1RWH 
2QEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUG

 














&KDLUSHUVRQ

7UXVWHH
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZV



<HDUHQGHG0DUFK

,QFUHDVH GHFUHDVH LQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

2SHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV











([FHVV H[SHQVHV UHYHQXH








&KDQJHLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDO
5HFHLYDEOHV
3UHSDLGV
3D\DEOHV
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH



1HWGHFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
















(QGRI\HDU







%HJLQQLQJRI\HDU





 






















38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,3$57$





)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK







1DWXUHRIRSHUDWLRQV


7KH%RDUGKDVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\WRSURYLGHSULPDU\DQGVHFRQGDU\HGXFDWLRQUHTXLUHPHQWVLQ
)UHQFK WR SHRSOH ZLWKLQ 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH %RDUG LV IXQGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI
(GXFDWLRQDQG/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ



6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
7KH %RDUG IROORZV WKH UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV RI WKH 3XEOLF 6HFWRU $FFRXQWLQJ %RDUG RI WKH
&DQDGLDQ,QVWLWXWHRI&KDUWHUHG$FFRXQWDQWV


5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
7KH %RDUG IROORZV WKH GHIHUUDO PHWKRG RI DFFRXQWLQJ IRU JUDQWV IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV *UDQWV
UHVWULFWHG IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXH LQ WKH \HDU LQ ZKLFK WKH UHODWHG
H[SHQVHV DUH LQFXUUHG 7KH XQH[SHQGHG SRUWLRQ RI JUDQWV UHFHLYH G IRU VSHFLILF
SXUFKDVHV LV GHIHUUHG DQG XVHG IRU UHODWHG IXWXUH SXUFKDVHV 8QUHVWULFWHG
DPRXQWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXH ZKHQ UHFHLYHG RU UHFHLYDEOH LI WKH DPRXQW WR EH
UHFHLYHG FDQ EH UHDVRQDEO\ HVWLPDWHG DQG FROOHFWLRQ LV UHDVRQDEO\DVVXUHG

*RYHUQPHQW WUDQVIHUV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXHV ZKHQ WKH WUDQVIHU LV DXWKRUL]HG DQG
HOLJLELOLW\FULWHULDDUHPHW 7RWKHH[WHQWWKDWWUDQVIHUVWLSXODWLRQVJLYHULVHWRDQREOLJDWLRQWKDW
PHHWVWKHGHILQLWLRQRIDOLDELOLW\WUDQVIHUVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVGHIHUUHGUHYHQXH


5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHV
7KH)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO%RDUGUHFRUGVDQDQQXDOH[SHQVHEDVHGRQWKHFKDQJHLQWKH
DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG REOLJDWLRQ IRU UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EHQHILWV QHW RI SD\PHQWV GXULQJ
WKH\HDU )XQGVWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQZKLFKDUHDOLDELOLW\RIWKH%RDUGZLOOEHUHLPEXUVHGE\
WKH 'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQDQG/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ DW WKH WLPH RI SD\PHQW 7KHUHIRUH D
UHFHLYDEOH IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW LV UHFRUGHGIRUWKHHQWLUHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHDPRXQW

5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHVDUHSURYLGHGWRHPSOR\HHVRQGHDWKRUUHWLUHPHQWLIWKHHPSOR\HHKDV
\HDUVRIFRQWLQXRXVVHUYLFH \HDUVIRUH[FOXGHGPHPEHUV 7KHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHLV
IRUVRPDQ\GD\VSHU\HDURIVHUYLFHZLWKPD[LPXPVZKLFKYDU\EDVHGRQXQLRQDIILOLDWLRQ


9DFDWLRQSD\
9DFDWLRQHQWLWOHPHQWVDUHH[SHQVHGDVHDUQHG


'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH
7KH XQH[SHQGHG SRUWLRQ RI JUDQWV UHFHLYHG IRU VSHFLILF SXUFKDVHV LV GHIHUUHG DQG XVHG IRU
UHODWHGIXWXUHSXUFKDVHV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK





 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 
&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV LQFOXGH FDVK RQ KDQG DQG EDODQFHV ZLWK EDQNV QHW RI EDQN
RYHUGUDIWDQGKLJKO\OLTXLGVKRUWWHUPGHSRVLWV


3HQVLRQSODQV
,QVWUXFWLRQDO HPSOR\HHV RI WKH %RDUG DUH PHPEHUV RI 7HDFKHU 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ
3ODQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW
\HDU FRQWULEXWLRQV DV DQ\ VKRUWIDOO LQ IXQGLQJ RI WKH SHQVLRQ SODQ LV WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH
3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7 K H  DPRXQW SDLG WR WKLV SODQ GXULQJ WKH \HDU LV
  

0HPEHUVRIWKHVXSSRUWVWDII DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG (GXFDWLRQ 6HFWRU
3HQVLRQ3ODQZLWKERWKGHILQHGEHQHILWGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQFRPSRQHQWV7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH
%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRDPDWFKLQJFRQWULEXWLRQHTXDOWRWKHHPSOR\HHSRUWLRQ


&HUWDLQ PHPEHUV RI WKH VXSSRUW VWDII RI WKH %RDUG DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH &LYLO 6HUYLFH
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ 3HQVLRQ 3ODQ RI WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH H[SHQVH RI WKH
%RDUGLVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW\HDUFRQWULEXWLRQVDVDQ\VKRUWIDOOLQIXQGLQJRIWKHSHQVLRQSODQLV
WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH 3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH DPRXQW SDLG WR WKLV SODQ
GXULQJ WKH\HDULV  


:RUNHUV¶FRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPV
7KH )UHQFK /DQJXDJH 6FKRRO %RDUG LV D UHJLVWHUHG HPSOR\HU ZLWK WKH :RUNHU¶V
&RPSHQVDWLRQ%RDUGRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGIRULQVWUXFWLRQDODQGVXSSRUWVWDII7KH 6FKRRO
%RDUG UHFRUGV DQ DQQXDO H[SHQVH EDVHG RQ SD\UROO DVVHVVPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH
:RUNHUV¶&RPSHQVDWLRQ$FW






'HIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ
7HDFKHUV HPSOR\HG ZLWK WKH )UHQFK /DQJXDJH 6FKRRO %RDUG FDQ SDUWLFLSDWH LQ D SURJUDP
WKDW DOORZV WKHP WRGHIHU D SRUWLRQ RI WKHLU DQQXDO VDODU\DQG WDNHD SDLG OHDYH RI DEVHQFH
7KH GHIHUUDO UHVXOWV LQ D OLDELOLW\ WR WKH WHDFKHUV ZKLFK LV VDWLVILHG GXULQJ WKH SDLG OHDYH RI
DEVHQFH)XQGVWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQZKLFKDUHDOLDELOLW\RIWKH%RDUGZLOOEHUHLPEXUVHG
E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ DQG /LIHORQJ /HDUQLQJ RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG DQG
WKHUHIRUH DQ\ OLDELOLW\ KDV DQ RIIVHWWLQJ UHFHLYDEOH GXH IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK




 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 
0HDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\DQGWKHXVHRIHVWLPDWHV
&DQDGLDQ SXEOLF VHFWRU DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV UHTXLUH PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH HVWLPDWHV DQG
DVVXPSWLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DQG GLVFORVXUH RI
FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DW WKH GDWH RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG WKH UHSRUWHG
DPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKH\HDU

0HDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ WKDW PD\ EH PDWHULDO WR WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV H[LVWV IRU WKH
OLDELOLW\ IRU HPSOR\HH IXWXUH EHQHILWV RI      EHFDXVH DFWXDO
H[SHULHQFH PD\ GLIIHU IURP DFWXDULDO DVVXPSWLRQV 7KHVH HVWLPDWHV DQG DVVXPSWLRQV DUH
UHYLHZHG SHULRGLFDOO\ DQG DV DGMXVWPHQWV EHFRPH QHFHVVDU\WKH\DUHUHSRUWHGLQHDUQLQJV
LQWKHSHULRGVLQZKLFKWKH\EHFRPHNQRZQ

:KLOH EHVW HVWLPDWHV DUH XVHG IRU UHSRUWLQJ LWHPV VXEMHFW WR PHDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ LW LV
UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHWKDWFKDQJHVLQIXWXUHFRQGLWLRQVRFFXUULQJZLWKLQRQHILVFDO\HDUFRXOG
UHTXLUHPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHDPRXQWVUHFRJQL]HGRUGLVFORVHG










2WKHUUHYHQXH



3URJUDPIXQGLQJ
2WKHU
5HQWDOVDQGUHFRYHUDEOHFRVWV



































([SHQVHVE\GHSDUWPHQW


7KH IROORZLQJ LV D VXPPDU\ RI WKH H[SHQVHV UHSRUWHG RQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI RSHUDWLRQV E\
GHSDUWPHQWH[FOXGLQJHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV



,QVWUXFWLRQDO
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
(PSOR\HHEHQHILWV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK








5HFHLYDEOHV

7UDQVLWLRQSD\
+67
2WKHU
































%DQNLQGHEWHGQHVV


7KH%RDUGKDVDQDXWKRUL]HGRSHUDWLQJOLQHRIFUHGLWRIEHDULQJLQWHUHVWDWRI
ZKLFK  ZDVXQXVHGDW0DUFK








'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH









)XQGVGHVLJQDWHGIRU
6WXGHQWVHUYLFHV
&DSLWDOSURMHFWV
&RPPXQLW\IXQGLQJ
/LEUDU\
2IILFLDOODQJXDJHV
2WKHU
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
3URJUDPPDWHULDOV
6SHFLDOSURMHFWV
6SHFLDOL]DWLRQ
6FKRROLPSURYHPHQW
5HVHUYH0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
4XHEHF3(,
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK





3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV


$QDQDO\VLVRIWKHFRPSRQHQWVRIDQGFKDQJHVLQSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV OLDELOLWLHVLVDV
IROORZV





5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH
%DODQFH$SULO








 





,QWHUHVWDFFUXHG





$PRUWL]DWLRQRIXQDPRUWL]HGJDLQ





&XUUHQWVHUYLFHFRVW

/HVVSD\PHQWVPDGH

 




%DODQFH0DUFK



9DFDWLRQSD\
















8QDPRUWL]HGDFWXDULDOJDLQ

  











 







7KH UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EDODQFHV DUH EDVHG RQ DQ LQGHSHQGHQW DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ GDWHG
$SULOSURYLGHGE\WKH3HQVLRQDQG%HQHILWV'LYLVLRQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQG 3XEOLF 6HUYLFH &RPPLVVLRQ 7KH UHSRUW ZDV DPHQGHG IRU D FKDQJH LQ WKH GLVFRXQW
UDWH WR EH XVHG LQ WKH YDOXDWLRQ RI WKH OLDELOLW\7KH DPHQGPHQW ZDV GDWHG $SULO  
7KH 3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGSURMHFWVWKHWRWDOOLDELOLW\LQWKH\HDUVEHWZHHQWKHWUL
DQQXDO DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQV 7KH DPHQGPHQW GDWHG $SULO   LV UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH
 SURMHFWLRQSUHSDUHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

7KH HFRQRPLF DVVXPSWLRQV XVHG LQ GHWHUPLQLQJ WKH DFWXDULDO YDOXH RI DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW
DOORZDQFHV ZHUH GHYHORSHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR H[SHFWHG ORQJ WHUP PDUNHW FRQGLWLRQV
6LJQLILFDQWDFWXDULDODVVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHYDOXDWLRQVDQGSURMHFWLRQVDUH


'LVFRXQWUDWH
([SHFWHGLQIODWLRQUDWH
([SHFWHGDYHUDJHUHPDLQLQJVHUYLFHOLIH

SHUDQQXP
SHUDQQXP
\HDUV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK






*UDQWDOORFDWLRQILJXUHV



7KH PDMRULW\ RI WKH %RDUG¶V DFWLYLWLHV DUH IXQGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW RI (GXFDWLRQ DQG
/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ 7KH DQQXDO JUDQW DOORFDWLRQIURP WKH'HSDUWPHQWSURYLGHVGHWDLOVDVWR
WKH IXQGLQJ DOORFDWLRQV IRU HDFK RSHUDWLRQDO DUHD ZLWK WKH H[FHSWLRQ RI VDODULHV 7KRXJK
PDUJLQDO WKH %RDUG DOVR KDV UHYHQXHV IURP RWKHU VRXUFHV D SRUWLRQ RI ZKLFK KDV EHHQ
GHIHUUHGIURPSULRU\HDUV WKDWDUH QRW LQFOXGHG LQ WKH EXGJHW ILJXUHV SUHVHQWHG 7KH JUDQW
IRU VDODULHV LV IRU DQ DSSURYHG QXPEHU RI IXOOWLPHHPSOR\HHV IRU WKH %RDUG )XQGLQJ IRU
WKHDSSURYHGQXPEHURISRVLWLRQV LV SURYLGHG E\WKH'HSDUWPHQW EXW WKH DFWXDO GROODU YDOXH
RI WKH DSSURYHG SRVLWLRQV LV QRW LQFOXGHGLQWKHLGHQWLILHGJUDQW6LQFHDGROODUYDOXHZDVQRW
SURYLGHGIRUVDODULHVWKHJUDQW DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK WKLV H[SHQGLWXUH KDV EHHQ H[FOXGHG IURP
WKLV QRWH WR WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH IROORZLQJ ILJXUHV DUH WKH RSHUDWLRQDO EXGJHW
DOORFDWLRQV SURYLGHG E\WKH 'HSDUWPHQW FRPSDUHGWRWKHDFWXDOUHVXOWVIRU


*UDQW
DOORFDWLRQ
E\FDWHJRU\
0DUFK



$FWXDO
H[SHQGLWXUHV
E\FDWHJRU\
0DUFK









$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
5HQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQW
,QVWUXFWLRQDO
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
2/()XQGLQJ






















 &RQWLQJHQF\


7KH%RDUGKDV HOHFWHG WR VHOI LQVXUH LWVHOI UHODWHG WRFROOLVLRQ FRYHUDJH 'XULQJ WKH \HDU QR
HYHQWVZHUHUHSRUWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSROLFLHVRIWKHFROOLVLRQFRQWLQJHQF\IXQG
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
0DUFK


 &29,'

6LQFH -DQXDU\   WKH VSUHDG RI &29,' KDV VHYHUHO\ LPSDFWHG PDQ\ ORFDO
HFRQRPLHV DURXQG WKH JOREH ,Q PDQ\ FRXQWULHV LQFOXGLQJ &DQDGD EXVLQHVVHV DQG
RUJDQL]DWLRQVDUHEHLQJIRUFHGWRFHDVHRUOLPLWRSHUDWLRQVIRUORQJRULQGHILQLWHSHULRGV
RI WLPH 0HDVXUHV WDNHQ WR FRQWDLQ WKH VSUHDG RI WKH YLUXV LQFOXGLQJ WUDYHO EDQV
TXDUDQWLQHV VRFLDO GLVWDQFLQJ DQG FORVXUHV RI QRQHVVHQWLDO VHUYLFHV KDYH WULJJHUHG
VLJQLILFDQW GLVUXSWLRQV WR EXVLQHVVHV DQG RUJDQL]DWLRQV ZRUOGZLGH UHVXOWLQJ LQ DQ
HFRQRPLF VORZGRZQ 7KH GXUDWLRQ DQG LPSDFW RI WKH &29,' SDQGHPLF UHPDLQV
XQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH

7KH RXWEUHDN RI &29,' DQG UHODWHG JOREDO UHVSRQVHV KDYH FDXVHG PDWHULDO
GLVUXSWLRQVWRRUJDQL]DWLRQVDURXQGWKHZRUOGOHDGLQJWRDQHFRQRPLFVORZGRZQ7KH
%RDUG¶V VFKRROV UHRSHQHG LQ 6HSWHPEHU  DQG DUH RSHUDWLQJ DV SODQQHG ZLWK
&29,'SURWRFROV$GGLWLRQDOFRVWVZHUHLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKH\HDUGXHWRSXEOLFKHDOWK
PHDVXUHV DQG VFKRRO UHRSHQLQJ SODQV ZKLFK UHVXOWHG LQ DGGLWLRQDO IXQGLQJ &29,'
GLGQRWKDYHDVLJQLILFDQWLPSDFWRQWKHYDOXDWLRQRIWKH%RDUG VDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDW
0DUFK

7KH GXUDWLRQ DQG LPSDFW RI WKH &29,' SDQGHPLF DV ZHOO DV WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI
JRYHUQPHQWDQGFHQWUDOEDQNUHVSRQVHVUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH,WLVQRWSRVVLEOH
WR UHOLDEO\ HVWLPDWH WKH GXUDWLRQ DQG VHYHULW\ RI WKHVH FRQVHTXHQFHV DV ZHOODV WKHLU
LPSDFW RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO LPSDFW RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DQG UHVXOWV RI WKH %RDUG IRU
IXWXUHSHULRGV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI6DODULHVDQG%HQHILWV([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK










$GPLQLVWUDWLYHSRVLWLRQV
0DQDJHPHQW
2G\VVĠHSURJUDP
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
$GPLQLVWUDWLYHDVVLVWDQWV
7HDFKHUV
(GXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG\RXWKZRUNHUV
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ



 
 










 







%HQHILWV
5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH

















1RWHV


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH SRVLWLRQ VDODULHV LQFOXGH SULQFLSDOV YLFHSULQFLSDOV GHSDUWPHQW KHDGV DQG
FRQVXOWDQWV

%RDUGPDQDJHPHQWVDODULHVLQFOXGHWKHVXSHULQWHQGHQWGLUHFWRURIDGPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGILQDQFH
GLUHFWRURIFXUULFXOXPGHYHORSPHQWGLUHFWRURIVWXGHQWVHUYLFHVGLUHFWRURIKXPDQUHVRXUFHV
DVVLVWDQWGLUHFWRURIDGPLQLVWUDWLRQDQGILQDQFHDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLYHDVVLVWDQW

2G\VVpHSURJUDPVDODULHVLQFOXGHVDODULHVIRUWKH)UHQFK0RQLWRU3URJUDP

0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQVVDODULHVLQFOXGHVFKRROMDQLWRUVDQGFOHDQHUV

$GPLQLVWUDWLYHDVVLVWDQWVDODULHVLQFOXGHPHPEHUVRIWKHVFKRROERDUGDQGVFKRROVXSSRUWVWDII 

7HDFKHUV¶VDODULHVLQFOXGHDOOWHDFKLQJVWDIIH[FOXGLQJWKRVHOLVWHGDERYH

6DODULHVRIHGXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG\RXWKZRUNHUVLQFOXGHDOOHGXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG
\RXWKVHUYLFHZRUNHUV 

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQVDODULHVLQFOXGHEXVGULYHUV

%HQHILWVLQFOXGHWKHHPSOR\HU¶VVKDUHRI&DQDGD3HQVLRQ3ODQDQG(PSOR\PHQW,QVXUDQFH
JURXS LQVXUDQFHSHQVLRQWHDFKHUVXSHUDQQXDWLRQSUHPLXPVDQGYDULRXVHPSOR\HH
DOORZDQFHV
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ϭ

)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI0DLQWHQDQFHDQG2SHUDWLRQ([SHQVH
<HDUHQGHG0DUFK







%XLOGLQJUHSDLUV
(OHFWULFLW\
(TXLSPHQWUHSDLUV
(TXLSPHQW
+HDWLQJ
*DUEDJHZDWHUDQGVHZDJH
,QVXUDQFH
-DQLWRULDODQGRWKHUVXSSOLHV
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGJURXQGV
0LVFHOODQHRXV
6HUYLFHFRQWUDFW
6QRZUHPRYDO
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ([SHQVH


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK





$GYHUWLVLQJ
%DGGHEW
%RDUGPHPEHUUHPXQHUDWLRQ
%RDUGPHPEHUWUDYHODQGRWKHU
,QVXUDQFH
0LVFHOODQHRXV
2IILFHVXSSOLHV
3RVWDOVHUYLFHVDQGH[SHQVHV
3URIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHV
3XEOLFUHODWLRQV
6HUYLFHFRQWUDFWV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ([SHQVH


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK





&RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQWDQGVRIWZDUH
&RQWUDFWVHUYLFHV
(PSOR\HHDOORZDQFHV
([WUDFXUULFXODU
*DVDQGRLO
,QVXUDQFH
0LVFHOODQHRXV
5HSDLUV











































38%/,&$&&2817692/80(,,,3$57$



)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI3URJUDP([SHQVH


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK





$FDGHPLFVXSSOLHV
$UW
&RPSXWHU
&XOWXUDODZDUHQHVVDQGVWXGHQWRSSRUWXQLWLHV


















/LEUDU\
/LWHUDF\
0LVFHOODQHRXV
0XVLF
3KRWRFRS\LQJ
3K\VLFDOHGXFDWLRQ
6FKRROGHYHORSPHQW
6FLHQFH
6SHFLDOL]DWLRQV
6WXGHQWVHUYLFHV
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)UHQFK/DQJXDJH6FKRRO %RDUG
6FKHGXOHRI5HQRYDWLRQV5HSDLUVDQG0DLQWHQDQFH
([SHQVH


<HDUHQGHG0DUFK



$XGLRYLVXDO
%XLOGLQJV
&ODVVURRPSURJUDPIXUQLWXUH
&RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQWDGPLQLVWUDWLRQ
(TXLSPHQW
0LVFHOODQHRXV
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Management's Report
The integrity, relevance and comparability of the data in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of management.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting policies is disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves
the use of estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current
period cannot be finalized with a certainty until future periods.
To meet its responsibility, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with
legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by
management.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Innovation PEI on matters of financial reporting and
internal control. Management provides the Board of Directors with externally audited financial statements
annually. The Board also discusses any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their
approval of the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by ArsenaultBestCameronEllis, independent external
auditors appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of Innovation PEI

___________________________________
Stefanie Corbett
Chief Executive Officer
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June 28, 2021
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Innovation PEI, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net financial assets, accumulated surplus, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Innovation PEI as at March 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Innovation PEI in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Innovation
PEI’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Innovation
PEI or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Innovation PEI’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(1)
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!

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

!

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Innovation PEI’s internal control.

!

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

!

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on Innovation PEI’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Innovation PEI to cease to continue
as a going concern.

!

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

(2)
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Innovation PEI
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

Assets
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (note 2)
Advances to related companies (note 6)
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island

3,672,544
731,396
11,236,891
37,447,651

6,075,783
683,428
11,152,241
27,648,832

53,088,482

45,560,284

46,795,772
13,049

39,425,133
24,301

46,808,821

39,449,434

6,279,661

6,110,850

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6)
Obligation under capital lease (note 3)

Net financial assets
Trust funds (note 4)
Less: funds on deposit

-

200,020
(200,020)

-

-

729,868
30,120

825,773
30,425

759,988

856,198

7,039,649

6,967,048

Commitments (note 5)
Contingent Liability (note 7)
Non-financial assets
Property holdings (Schedule) (note 3)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (note 6)

Accumulated surplus

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
(3)
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Innovation PEI
Consolidated Statement of Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Accumulated operating surplus - Beginning of year
Annual surplus

Accumulated operating surplus - End of year
Contributed surplus (note 6)
Accumulated surplus - End of year

(4)

2021
$

2020
$

6,601,009

6,297,067

72,601

303,942

6,673,610

6,601,009

366,039

366,039

7,039,649

6,967,048
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Innovation PEI
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Budget
(Unaudited)
$

2021
$

2020
$

Revenue
Grant - Province of Prince Edward Island (note 6)
Project recoveries
Miscellaneous

49,872,700
1,779,700
39,000

49,877,121
1,699,951
61,749

41,920,444
1,626,936
25,287

51,691,400

51,638,821

43,572,667

6,049,800
1,402,400
44,014,200
75,000
150,000
-

5,608,097
1,380,531
44,330,898
33,565
208,345
4,784

5,470,421
1,446,948
36,111,296
51,724
188,336
-

51,691,400

51,566,220

43,268,725

-

72,601

303,942

Expenses
Salaries (note 6)
Operating
Development programs (note 6)
Project costs
Amortization - property holdings
Loss on sale of property holdings

Annual surplus

(5)
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Innovation PEI
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Annual surplus
Acquisition of property holdings
Amortization of property holdings
Loss on sale of property holdings
Change due to property holdings
Change in prepaid expenses

2021

2020

$

$

72,601

303,942

(117,224)
208,345
4,784

(132,033)
188,336
-

95,905

56,303

305

Increase in net financial assets

(4,430)

168,811

355,815

Net financial assets - Beginning of year

6,110,850

5,755,035

Net financial assets - End of year

6,279,661

6,110,850

(6)
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Innovation PEI
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2021
2021
$

2020
$

72,601

303,942

208,345
4,784

188,336
-

285,730

492,278

(47,968)
7,370,639
305

84,068
2,335,237
(4,430)

7,608,706

2,907,153

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Annual surplus
Items not affecting cash
Amortization - property holdings
Loss on sale of property holdings

Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and deposits

Financing activities
Increase in due from Province of Prince Edward Island
Increase in obligation under capital lease
Repayment of obligation under capital lease

(9,798,819)
(11,252)

33,540
(9,239)

(9,810,071)

24,301

Investing activities
Decrease (increase) in advances to related companies
Increase in due from Province of Prince Edward Island

(84,650)
-

164,736
(625,698)

(84,650)

(460,962)

(117,224)

(132,033)

Capital activity
Additions to and purchase of property holdings

Increase in cash

(2,403,239)

2,338,459

Cash - Beginning of year

6,075,783

3,737,324

Cash - End of year

3,672,544

6,075,783

(7)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

Innovation PEI (the "Corporation") is a Crown corporation established under the Innovation PEI Act. Its financial
results are included in the public accounts of the Province of Prince Edward Island.

1

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of CPA Canada. The
following is a summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statements.
a)

General
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the wholly-owned subsidiary, F.T.C.
Enterprises Limited (operating as Bio/Food/Tech) and LaunchPad PEI Inc., a not-for-profit organization
controlled by Innovation PEI.

b)

Financial instruments
i) Measurement of financial instruments
Innovation PEI's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, advances to related
companies, due from Province of Prince Edward Island, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
obligations under capital lease.
The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted
by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value, the
amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument. This fair value amount is then
deemed to be the amortized cost of the financial instrument.
The Corporation subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost.
ii) Impairment
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators of
possible impairment. When a significant adverse change has occurred during the period in the
expected timing or amount of future cash flows from the financial asset or group of assets, a writedown is recognized in annual surplus. The write-down reflects the difference between the carrying
amount and the higher of:
!

The present value of the cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or group of assets;

!

The amount that could be realized by selling the asset or group of assets;

!

The net realizable value of any collateral held to secure repayment of the asset or group of assets.

When events occurring after the impairment confirm that a reversal is necessary, the reversal is
recognized in annual surplus up to the amount of the previously recognized impairment.
(8)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

c)

Cash
Cash is comprised of cash on hand, cash in banks and savings accounts.

d)

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable arise from trade sales, government funding, other miscellaneous receivables, staff
advances and receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been calculated through discussions
with management, assessment of the other circumstances influencing the collectibility of amounts, and
using historical loss experience. Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off and deducted from the
carrying value of the receivable. Amounts subsequently recovered from accounts previously written off
are recorded as a recovery of doubtful accounts in the period recovered.

e)

Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
The amount due from the Province of Prince Edward Island is the funding to be received for operating
grants and other approved reimbursements.

f)

Programs assistance payable
Program assistance grants are expensed as development program expenditures and included in accrued
liabilities when approved by the Corporation and accepted by the client except for Federal-Provincial
cost shared programs and provincially-funded assistance requiring future performance criteria, which are
expensed based on eligible claims.
P.E.I. labour rebate program assistance, enriched investment tax credits, development fund assistance,
specialized labour rebate, cultural industry support and share purchase tax credit commitments that
extend beyond two years are expensed in each year that performance criteria are met by the applicant.

g)

Property holdings and amortization
i)

Property holdings
Property holdings are stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line method at the following
annual rates:
Buildings
Equipment
Equipment under capital lease

5%, 20%
10% - 100%
10%

A full year’s amortization is recorded in the year of acquisition.

(9)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

h)

Foreign currency
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at
the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the average monthly exchange rate.
Exchange differences are recognized into income in the period in which they arise.

i)

Revenue recognition and deferred revenue
Grants from the Province of Prince Edward Island are recorded in the period authorized by the Province.
Innovation PEI's subsidiary follows the percentage-of-completion method of accounting for revenue and
expenditures on project contracts. The percentage-of-completion method records the organization’s
project revenue based on the expenditures incurred and work completed on each contract in progress as
at the statement of financial position date. Revenue billed that is unearned is recorded as deferred
revenue.

j)

Post retirement benefits
The Corporation provides retirement benefits to eligible employees. The benefit is based on one week's
salary per year of service to a maximum of 26 weeks and is expensed on an accrual basis.

k)

Employee pension plan
Most of the Corporation's staff are members of the Province of Prince Edward Island pension plan.
Pension obligations are liabilities of the Province and not the Corporation and no liability for these costs
has been accrued by the Corporation at March 31, 2021. The employer contributions to the pension for
the year totaled $340,487 (2020 - $313,989).

l)

Government assistance
The Corporation receives assistance from other government entities. The Corporation recognizes this
assistance as revenue in the period when the transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria and/or
stipulations, if any, are met.
The Corporation received $250,000 (2020 - $200,000) in technical support and workshop funding from
National Research Council aimed at improved productivity and competitiveness. This amount is included
in revenue under project recoveries. The Corporation also received $13,051 (2020 - nil) for salaries from
Skills PEI which is recorded as a reduction to the salaries and benefits expense.

(10)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

m) Government transfers
Government transfers are transfers of assets from government that are not the result of an exchange
transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, and are not the result of a direct financial return.
Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which events
giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, eligibility criteria have been met
and reasonable estimates on the amounts can be determined.
n)

Management estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The following are areas in which management makes significant accounting estimates:
!

The amount recorded for amortization of property holdings on the statement of operations is subject
to management's assessment of the estimated useful life of the Corporation's property holdings;

!

The recognized amounts of potential claims and liabilities depend on management's assessment of
future costs and the probability these events will occur; and

!

The revenue recognized from long term projects under the percentage of completion method is
based on an assessment of each project based on costs incurred with regard to estimated overall
costs of the project.

!

Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus) has resulted in governments
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures have
caused material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global
equity markets have experienced significant volatility. The duration and impact of the COVID-19
outbreak is unknown at this time, as is the outcome of government and central bank interventions.
In management's estimation, these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2021. The duration and
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the
financial position and results of the Corporation for future periods.

(11)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

2

Accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable and HST
Staff advances receivable
Product Development Fund receivable

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

3

2021
$

2020
$

737,613
119,275
2,718

699,424
117,629
3,770

859,606
(128,210)

820,823
(137,395)

731,396

683,428

2021
$

2020
$

13,049

24,301

Obligations under capital lease

0% capital lease, due May 2022, repayable in monthly principal instalments
of $931 plus applicable taxes; secured by equipment

Principal portion of obligation under capital lease is scheduled to be repaid over the next two years as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2023
2024

4

11,172
1,877

Trust funds
On May 31, 2015, Innovation PEI entered into an agreement with McCain Foods (Canada), a division of
McCain Foods Limited, on behalf of the government of Prince Edward Island to manage the "Adjustment
Fund" established to assist the Albany/Borden-Carleton area with mitigating lost employment and economic
impacts resulting from the closure of the McCain processing facility in Albany/Borden-Carleton.
As a result, Innovation PEI received $2,000,000 to be disbursed to approved projects in accordance with the
provisions of the agreement. All remaining funds have been disbursed as of March 31, 2021.

5

Commitments
(a) F.T.C. Enterprises Limited has entered into a 25 year lease expiring November 2038 with the University
of Prince Edward Island for the land upon which the Corporation constructed its facilities. The lease cost
is $1 per year and is renewable for a further term of 25 years for the same annual consideration.

(12)
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

(b) LaunchPad PEI Inc. has entered into a lease agreement that expires October 14, 2025. Minimum lease
payments for the next five years are as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

217,835
217,835
217,835
217,835
108,918

(c) Innovation PEI has committed to disbursing as development program expenses $29,577,067 (2020 $32,064,695) for P.E.I. labour rebate program assistance, $5,027,471 (2020 - $6,259,223) for enriched
investment tax credits, $1,174,292 (2020 - $2,265,255) for development fund assistance, $61,056 (2020 $59,406) for specialized labour rebate, $66,000 (2020 - $132,000) for cultural industry support and
$21,000 (2020 - $21,000) for share purchase tax credit over the next four years as companies meet the
required requirements. There is no accounting recognition for these commitments.
In accordance with accounting policy note 1(f), program assistance for the PEI labour rebate program,
enriched investment tax credits, development fund assistance, specialized labour rebate, cultural industry
support and share purchase tax credit expenses are expensed in each year that performance criteria are
met by the applicant.

6

Related party transactions
Related companies
The related companies are provincial Crown corporations or subsidiaries of provincial crown corporations or
the parent entity.
Statement of Financial Position
Advances to related companies

Advances to (from) related companies
Finance PEI
Island Investment Development Inc.
P.E.I. Biocommons Inc.
Atlantic Technology Centre Inc.
100417 P.E.I. Inc.
Tourism PEI

(13)

2021
$

2020
$

11,115,699
85,445
80
35,452
(100)
315

11,031,522
86,349
80
34,075
(100)
315

11,236,891

11,152,241
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Innovation PEI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2021

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $92,776 (2020 - $45,085) payable to the Province of
Prince Edward Island.
F.T.C. Enterprises Limited's property and liability insurance coverage is provided by Finance PEI, a related
party. As at March 31, 2021, $14,686 (2020 - $13,481) has been recognized as prepaid insurance and is
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Contributed surplus
F.T.C. Enterprises Limited received a cumulative total of $366,039 in funds from the Province of Prince
Edward Island through Innovation PEI that have been accounted for as contributed surplus. This contribution
has not been eliminated on consolidation.
Statement of Operations
Revenue
Included in revenue are grants from the Province of Prince Edward Island of $49,877,121 (2020 $41,920,444).
Expenses
During the year, the Corporation paid $81,407 (2020 - $95,792) to Atlantic Technology Centre Inc. in rent
expense and it is included in development programs expense.
The above transactions were recorded in the normal course of operations and measured at exchange amounts.
Other
During the year, Innovation PEI administered two programs on behalf of the Province of Prince Edward
Island. The Corporation administered $4,403,897 (2020 - nil) in funds for The Business Advice and
Adaptation Fund, $1,028,838 (2020 - nil) in funds for The Workspace Adaptation Assistance Fund and
$1,704,569 (2020 $664,840) in funds for the Emergency Income Relief for Self-Employed program. As the
Corporation was acting as an agent for the Province of Prince Edward Island, the revenue and expenditures for
the two programs are not included in expenses of the Corporation.

7

Contingent liabilities
A counterclaim has been commenced against the Corporation in response to an action for a deficiency
remaining after realization on collateral held by the P.E.I. Lending Agency, a former Crown corporation. The
claimant has not provided any details as to the nature and extent of damages or loss for which they seek
compensation. There is no liability recorded in these financial statements as it is management's opinion that no
liability is likely to arise as a result of this counterclaim. The counterclaim is ongoing.

(14)
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8

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Innovation PEI’s principal business activities result in a statement of financial position that consists primarily
of financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting financial instruments include
credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking activities rests with management,
which approves risk management policies, delegates’ limits and regularly reviews management’s risk
assessments and compliance with approved policies. Qualified professionals throughout Innovation PEI
manage these risks through comprehensive and integrated control processes and models, including regular
review and assessment of risk measurement and reporting processes.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a customer or counterparty of a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the Corporation’s
accounts receivable, advances to related companies and due from the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation
to each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the
statement of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of
any collateral or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations
under the financial instruments in question.
The Corporations's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
$
Cash
Accounts receivable
Advances to related companies
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island

3,672,544
731,396
11,236,891
37,447,651
53,088,482

(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
come due. Specifically, the Corporation needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts
payable and accrued liabilities as they come due. The Corporation's approach to manage liquidity risk is
to closely monitor its cash flows and forecast the expected receipts and obligations.
The Corporation's financial liabilities in the amount of $46,808,821 (2020 - $39,449,434) are expected to
be repaid within one year.

(15)
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(c) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the Corporation’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The Corporation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to the Corporation’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(d) Capital management
The primary objective of Innovation PEI's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
financial position in order to support its business. Innovation PEI manages its capital structure and
makes changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(16)

General
Equipment
Equipment under capital
lease
Buildings

General
Equipment
Equipment under
capital lease
Buildings

33,540
10,314
132,033

12,245,545

Additions
$

Beginning
$

4,485,453

117,224

12,367,623

88,179

2,889

33,540
4,495,767

7,760,092

114,335

Additions
$

7,838,316

Beginning
$

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Consolidated Schedule of Property Holdings

Innovation PEI

(9,955)

-

(9,955)

Disposals/
Transfers
$

(5,980)

-

(5,980)

Disposals/
Transfers
$

(17)

12,367,623

33,540
4,495,767

7,838,316

Ending
$

Cost

12,478,867

33,540
4,498,656

7,946,671

Ending
$

Cost

208,345

3,354
3,318

201,673

11,363,469

4,444,463

6,919,006

188,336

3,354
3,174

181,808

Beginning Amortization
$
$

11,541,850

3,354
4,447,637

7,090,859

Beginning Amortization
$
$

11,748,999

6,708
4,450,955

7,291,336

Ending
$

(9,955)

-

(9,955)

Disposals
$

11,541,850

3,354
4,447,637

7,090,859

Ending
$

Accumulated amortization

(1,196)

-

(1,196)

Disposals
$

Accumulated amortization

825,773

30,186
48,130

747,457

Net book
value
$

2020

729,868

26,832
47,701

655,335

Net book
value
$

2021

Schedule
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6FKHGXOHRIPDLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQH[SHQVHV



6FKHGXOHRIWUDQVSRUWDWLRQH[SHQVHV



6FKHGXOHRILQVWUXFWLRQDOH[SHQVHV



6FKHGXOHRIDGPLQLVWUDWLRQH[SHQVHV



6FKHGXOHRIUHQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQWH[SHQVHV
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0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HVSRQVLELOLW\)RU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJ
0DUFK


7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH EHHQ SUHSDUHG E\ PDQDJHPHQW LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ
SXEOLF VHFWRU DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV DQG WKH LQWHJULW\ DQG REMHFWLYLW\ RI WKHVH VWDWHPHQWV DUH
PDQDJHPHQW¶V UHVSRQVLELOLW\  0DQDJHPHQW LV DOVR UHVSRQVLEOH IRU DOO RI WKH QRWHV WR WKH
ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGVFKHGXOHVDQGIRUHQVXULQJWKDWWKLVLQIRUPDWLRQLVFRQVLVWHQWZKHUH
DSSURSULDWH ZLWK WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ FRQWDLQHG LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV  $ VXPPDU\ RI WKH
VLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDUHGHVFULEHGLQ1RWHWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

0DQDJHPHQWLVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRULPSOHPHQWLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJDV\VWHPRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROV
WR SURYLGH UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH WKDW UHOLDEOH ILQDQFLDO LQIRUPDWLRQ LV SURGXFHG  7KH LQWHUQDO
FRQWUROV DUH GHVLJQHG WR SURYLGH UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH WKDW DVVHWV DUH VDIHJXDUGHG
WUDQVDFWLRQVDUHSURSHUO\DXWKRUL]HGDQGUHFRUGHGLQFRPSOLDQFHZLWKOHJLVODWLYHDQGUHJXODWRU\
UHTXLUHPHQWVDQGUHOLDEOHILQDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLVDYDLODEOHRQDWLPHO\EDVLVIRUSUHSDUDWLRQRI
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

7KH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHQVXULQJWKDWPDQDJHPHQWIXOILOVLWVUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRU
ILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWURODQGH[HUFLVHVWKHVHUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVWKURXJKWKH%RDUG
7KH %RDUG UHYLHZV LQWHUQDO ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RQ D TXDUWHUO\ EDVLV DQG H[WHUQDO DXGLWHG
ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV \HDUO\  7KH %RDUG DOVR GLVFXVVHV DQ\ VLJQLILFDQW ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ RU
LQWHUQDOFRQWUROPDWWHUVSULRUWRWKHLUDSSURYDORIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

7KH H[WHUQDO DXGLWRUV *UDQW 7KRUQWRQ //3 FRQGXFW DQ LQGHSHQGHQW H[DPLQDWLRQ LQ
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ DXGLWLQJ VWDQGDUGV DQG H[SUHVV WKHLU RSLQLRQ RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV  7KH H[WHUQDO DXGLWRUV KDYH IXOO DQG IUHH DFFHVV WR ILQDQFLDO PDQDJHPHQW RI WKH
3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFKDQGPHHWZKHQUHTXLUHG7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJ$XGLWRU¶V5HSRUWRXWOLQHV
WKHLU UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV WKH VFRSH RI WKHLU H[DPLQDWLRQ DQG WKHLU RSLQLRQ RQ WKH ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV

2QEHKDOIRIWKH3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK









'LUHFWRURI&RUSRUDWH6HUYLFHV 










&RRUGLQDWRURI&RUSRUDWH6HUYLFHV
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,QGHSHQGHQWDXGLWRUV¶UHSRUW

Grant Thornton LLP
2nd Floor, Royal Bank Building
220 Water Street, PO Box 1660
Summerside, PE
C1N 2V5
T +1 902 436 9155
F +1 902 436 6913

To the Board of Directors
of the Public Schools Branch
2SLQLRQ
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK ³WKH(QWLW\´ ZKLFKFRPSULVH
WKHVWDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDVDW0DUFKDQGWKHVWDWHPHQWVRIRSHUDWLRQVFKDQJHLQ
QHWGHEWDQGFDVKIORZIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGDQGQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJD
VXPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV


,QRXURSLQLRQWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWIDLUO\LQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVWKH

ILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFKDVDW0DUFKDQGLWVUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQVLWV
FKDQJHVLQLWVQHWDVVHWVDQGLWVFDVKIORZVIRUWKH\HDUWKHQHQGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQ
SXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGV
%DVLVIRU2SLQLRQ
:HFRQGXFWHGRXUDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGV2XU
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVXQGHUWKRVHVWDQGDUGVDUHIXUWKHUGHVFULEHGLQWKHAuditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial StatementsVHFWLRQRIRXUUHSRUW:HDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH(QWLW\LQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHHWKLFDOUHTXLUHPHQWVWKDWDUHUHOHYDQWWRRXUDXGLWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ
&DQDGDDQGZHKDYHIXOILOOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVHUHTXLUHPHQWV
:HEHOLHYHWKDWWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHZHKDYHREWDLQHGLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV
IRURXURSLQLRQ

5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI0DQDJHPHQWDQG7KRVH&KDUJHGZLWK*RYHUQDQFHIRUWKH)LQDQFLDO
6WDWHPHQWV
0DQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQDQGIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQSXEOLFVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUGVDQGIRUVXFKLQWHUQDOFRQWURODV
PDQDJHPHQWGHWHUPLQHVLVQHFHVVDU\WRHQDEOHWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWDUHIUHH
IURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVPDQDJHPHQWLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUDVVHVVLQJWKH(QWLW\¶VDELOLW\WR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQGLVFORVLQJDVDSSOLFDEOHPDWWHUVUHODWHGWRDJRLQJFRQFHUQDQGXVLQJ
WKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJXQOHVVPDQDJHPHQWHLWKHULQWHQGVWROLTXLGDWHWKH(QWLW\RUWR
FHDVHRSHUDWLRQVRUKDVQRUHDOLVWLFDOWHUQDWLYHEXWWRGRVR
7KRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHDUHUHVSRQVLEOHIRURYHUVHHLQJWKH(QWLW\¶VILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSURFHVV


Audit I Tax I Advisory
@ Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd.
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$XGLWRU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVIRUWKH$XGLWRIWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWV
2XUREMHFWLYHVDUHWRREWDLQUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHDERXWZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROH
DUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUGXHWRIUDXGRUHUURUDQGWRLVVXHDQDXGLWRU¶VUHSRUWWKDW
LQFOXGHVRXURSLQLRQ5HDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHLVDKLJKOHYHORIDVVXUDQFHEXWLVQRWDJXDUDQWHHWKDW
DQDXGLWFRQGXFWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZLOODOZD\V
GHWHFWDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHQLWH[LVWV0LVVWDWHPHQWVFDQDULVHIURPIUDXGRUHUURUDQGDUH
FRQVLGHUHGPDWHULDOLILQGLYLGXDOO\RULQWKHDJJUHJDWHWKH\FRXOGUHDVRQDEO\EHH[SHFWHGWRLQIOXHQFH
WKHHFRQRPLFGHFLVLRQVRIXVHUVWDNHQRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
$VSDUWRIDQDXGLWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK&DQDGLDQJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDXGLWLQJVWDQGDUGVZHH[HUFLVH
SURIHVVLRQDOMXGJPHQWDQGPDLQWDLQSURIHVVLRQDOVNHSWLFLVPWKURXJKRXWWKHDXGLW:HDOVR
x

,GHQWLI\DQGDVVHVVWKHULVNVRIPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZKHWKHUGXHWR
IUDXGRUHUURUGHVLJQDQGSHUIRUPDXGLWSURFHGXUHVUHVSRQVLYHWRWKRVHULVNVDQGREWDLQDXGLW
HYLGHQFHWKDWLVVXIILFLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXURSLQLRQ7KHULVNRIQRW
GHWHFWLQJDPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWUHVXOWLQJIURPIUDXGLVKLJKHUWKDQIRURQHUHVXOWLQJIURPHUURU
DVIUDXGPD\LQYROYHFROOXVLRQIRUJHU\LQWHQWLRQDORPLVVLRQVPLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQVRUWKHRYHUULGH
RILQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

2EWDLQDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDOFRQWUROUHOHYDQWWRWKHDXGLWLQRUGHUWRGHVLJQDXGLW
SURFHGXUHVWKDWDUHDSSURSULDWHLQWKHFLUFXPVWDQFHVEXWQRWIRUWKHSXUSRVHRIH[SUHVVLQJDQ
RSLQLRQRQWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH(QWLW\ VLQWHUQDOFRQWURO

x

(YDOXDWHWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVXVHGDQGWKHUHDVRQDEOHQHVVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
HVWLPDWHVDQGUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVPDGHE\PDQDJHPHQW

x

&RQFOXGHRQWKHDSSURSULDWHQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQW VXVHRIWKHJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
DQGEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGZKHWKHUDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVUHODWHGWRHYHQWV
RUFRQGLWLRQVWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQLILFDQWGRXEWRQWKH(QWLW\ VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ
,IZHFRQFOXGHWKDWDPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQW\H[LVWVZHDUHUHTXLUHGWRGUDZDWWHQWLRQLQRXUDXGLWRU V
UHSRUWWRWKHUHODWHGGLVFORVXUHVLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRULIVXFKGLVFORVXUHVDUHLQDGHTXDWH
WRPRGLI\RXURSLQLRQ2XUFRQFOXVLRQVDUHEDVHGRQWKHDXGLWHYLGHQFHREWDLQHGXSWRWKHGDWHRI
RXUDXGLWRU VUHSRUW+RZHYHUIXWXUHHYHQWVRUFRQGLWLRQVPD\FDXVHWKH(QWLW\WRFHDVHWR
FRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQ

x

(YDOXDWHWKHRYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQVWUXFWXUHDQGFRQWHQWRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGLQJWKH
GLVFORVXUHVDQGZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVUHSUHVHQWWKHXQGHUO\LQJWUDQVDFWLRQVDQG
HYHQWVLQDPDQQHUWKDWDFKLHYHVIDLUSUHVHQWDWLRQ

:HFRPPXQLFDWHZLWKWKRVHFKDUJHGZLWKJRYHUQDQFHUHJDUGLQJDPRQJRWKHUPDWWHUVWKHSODQQHG
VFRSHDQGWLPLQJRIWKHDXGLWDQGVLJQLILFDQWDXGLWILQGLQJVLQFOXGLQJDQ\VLJQLILFDQWGHILFLHQFLHVLQ
LQWHUQDOFRQWUROWKDWZHLGHQWLI\GXULQJRXUDXGLW

6XPPHUVLGH3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG
-XQH

 
&KDUWHUHG3URIHVVLRQDO$FFRXQWDQWV


Audit I Tax I Advisory
@ Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd.
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6WDWHPHQWVRIRSHUDWLRQVDQGFKDQJHVLQQHWILQDQFLDO
DVVHWV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK
















 


















5HYHQXH

 7UDQVIHUVIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQW
 RI(GXFDWLRQ
  6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV 
  0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
  7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ

  ,QVWUXFWLRQDOVXSSOLHV 
  $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

  5HQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQW
  6SHFLDOSURJUDPIXQGLQJDQG
   UHFRYHULHV

  2WKHUUHYHQXH 1RWH 









 
























 











 
 







  

  










   
   

  

  

  

  

















   

  









 













 





([FHVVUHYHQXHV H[SHQVHV 









 





1HWILQDQFLDODVVHWVHQGRISHULRG












 







   





([SHQVHV 1RWH 
 3DJH
 6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV

 0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ 
 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ

 ,QVWUXFWLRQDO

 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

 5HQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQW 

 
 


















   


([FHVVUHYHQXHV H[SHQVHV 


1HWILQDQFLDODVVHWV
 EHJLQQLQJRISHULRG







6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6WDWHPHQWRIILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
0DUFK








)LQDQFLDODVVHWV
&DVK
5HFHLYDEOHV
 'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQ
 7UDGHDQGRWKHU
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQGHIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ
5HVWULFWHGFDVK
7UXVWIXQGV 1RWH 

  

)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
3D\DEOHVDQGDFFUXDOV
 *HQHUDO
 6DODULHVDQGEHQHILWV
 'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQ
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH 1RWH 
3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 1RWH 
'HIHUUHGVDODU\SURJUDP
'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH
7UXVWIXQGV 1RWH 

 














   


















 







 

   













































 









  

1HWDVVHWV


&RQWLQJHQF\ 1RWH 
,PSDFWVRI&29,' 1RWH 

 
 

   
  





2QEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUG



  

&KDLUSHUVRQ

7UXVWHH







6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6WDWHPHQWRIFDVKIORZV


<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

'HFUHDVH LQFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

2SHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV

([FHVVH[SHQVHV

&KDQJHLQQRQFDVKZRUNLQJFDSLWDO
  5HFHLYDEOHV
  3D\DEOHV
  'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH

1HWLQFUHDVHLQFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 %HJLQQLQJRISHULRG

 (QGRISHULRG


&RPSRQHQWVRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

 8QUHVWULFWHGFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
 5HVWULFWHGFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

   





 



















  
 
 





 







 









 







 

 




  

 

 





 

 

6HHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 1DWXUHRIRSHUDWLRQV

7KH%UDQFKKDVWKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\WRSURYLGHSULPDU\DQGVHFRQGDU\HGXFDWLRQUHTXLUHPHQWV
IRU (QJOLVK VSHDNLQJ VWXGHQWV LQ 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG 7KH (QWLW\ LV IXQGHG E\ WKH
'HSDUWPHQWRI(GXFDWLRQDQG/LIHORQJ/HDUQLQJ WKH'HSDUWPHQW 


 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

%DVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ
7KH (QWLW\ SUHSDUHV LWV ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK &DQDGLDQ 3XEOLF 6HFWRU
$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV

5HYHQXHUHFRJQLWLRQ
7KH (QWLW\ IROORZV WKH GHIHUUDO PHWKRG RI DFFRXQWLQJ IRU JUDQWV IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV *UDQWV
UHVWULFWHG IRU VSHFLDO SURMHFWV DUH UHFRJQL]HG DV UHYHQXH LQ WKH \HDU LQ ZKLFK WKH UHODWHG
H[SHQVHVDUHLQFXUUHG7KHXQH[SHQGHGSRUWLRQRIJUDQWVUHFHLYHGIRUVSHFLILFSXUFKDVHVLV
GHIHUUHGDQGXVHGIRUWKHUHODWHGIXWXUHSXUFKDVHV8QUHVWULFWHGDPRXQWVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDV
UHYHQXH ZKHQ UHFHLYHG RU UHFHLYDEOH LI WKH DPRXQW WR EH UHFHLYHG FDQ EH UHDVRQDEO\
HVWLPDWHGDQGFROOHFWLRQLVUHDVRQDEO\DVVXUHG

*RYHUQPHQWWUDQVIHUVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHVZKHQWKHWUDQVIHULVDXWKRUL]HGDQGDQ\
HOLJLELOLW\FULWHULDDUHPHW7RWKHH[WHQWWKDWWUDQVIHUVWLSXODWLRQVJLYHULVHWRDQREOLJDWLRQWKDW
PHHWVWKHGHILQLWLRQRIDOLDELOLW\WUDQVIHUVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVGHIHUUHGUHYHQXH

5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHV
7KH 3XEOLF 6FKRROV %UDQFK UHFRUGV DQ DQQXDO H[SHQVH EDVHG RQ WKH FKDQJH LQ WKH
DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG REOLJDWLRQ IRU UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EHQHILWV QHW RI SD\PHQWV GXULQJ
WKH\HDU)XQGVWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQZKLFKDUHDOLDELOLW\RIWKH(QWLW\ZLOOEHUHLPEXUVHGE\
WKH 'HSDUWPHQW DW WKH WLPH RI SD\PHQW 7KHUHIRUH D UHFHLYDEOH IURP WKH 'HSDUWPHQW LV
UHFRUGHGIRUWKHHQWLUHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHDPRXQW

5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHVDUHSURYLGHGWRHPSOR\HHVRQGHDWKRUUHWLUHPHQWLIWKHHPSOR\HHKDV
\HDUVRIFRQWLQXRXVVHUYLFH \HDUVIRUH[FOXGHGPHPEHU 7KHUHWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFHLV
IRUVRPDQ\GD\VSHU\HDURIVHUYLFHZLWKPD[LPXPVZKLFKYDU\EDVHGRQXQLRQDIILOLDWLRQ

9DFDWLRQSD\
9DFDWLRQHQWLWOHPHQWVDUHH[SHQVHGDVHDUQHG

&DVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV
&DVK DQG FDVK HTXLYDOHQWV LQFOXGH FDVK RQ KDQG DQG EDODQFHV ZLWK EDQNV QHW RI EDQN
RYHUGUDIW
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

3HQVLRQSODQV
,QVWUXFWLRQDOHPSOR\HHVRIWKH(QWLW\DUHPHPEHUVRIWKH7HDFKHU6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ3HQVLRQ
3ODQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH(QWLW\LVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW
\HDUFRQWULEXWLRQV DV DQ\VKRUWIDOO LQ IXQGLQJRI WKHSHQVLRQSODQ LV WKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH
3URYLQFH RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG $PRXQWV SDLG WR WKLV SODQ GXULQJ WKH \HDU ZHUH
  

1RQLQVWUXFWLRQDO HPSOR\HHV DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG (GXFDWLRQ 6HFWRU
3HQVLRQ3ODQZLWKERWKGHILQHGEHQHILWGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQFRPSRQHQWV7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH
(QWLW\LVOLPLWHGWRDPDWFKLQJFRQWULEXWLRQHTXDOWRWKHHPSOR\HH¶VSRUWLRQ

&HUWDLQ QRQLQVWUXFWLRQDO HPSOR\HHV RI WKH (QWLW\ DUH PHPEHUV RI WKH &LYLO 6HUYLFH
6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ3HQVLRQ3ODQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG7KHH[SHQVHRIWKH
(QWLW\LVOLPLWHGWRFXUUHQW\HDUFRQWULEXWLRQVDVDQ\VKRUWIDOOLQIXQGLQJRIWKHSHQVLRQSODQLV
WKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\RIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG$PRXQWVSDLGWRWKLVSODQGXULQJ
WKH\HDUZHUH  

:RUNHUV¶FRPSHQVDWLRQFODLPV
7KH3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFKLVDUHJLVWHUHGHPSOR\HUZLWKWKH:RUNHU¶V&RPSHQVDWLRQ(QWLW\
RI 3ULQFH (GZDUG ,VODQG IRU LQVWUXFWLRQDO DQG QRQLQVWUXFWLRQDO VWDII 7KH (QWLW\ UHFRUGV DQ
DQQXDO H[SHQVH EDVHG RQ SD\UROO DVVHVVPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH :RUNHUV¶
&RPSHQVDWLRQ$FW

'HIHUUHGVDODU\SODQ
7HDFKHUVHPSOR\HGZLWKWKH3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFKFDQSDUWLFLSDWHLQDSURJUDPWKDWDOORZV
WKHPWRGHIHUDSRUWLRQRIWKHLUDQQXDOVDODU\DQGWDNHDSDLGOHDYHRIDEVHQFH7KHGHIHUUDO
UHVXOWVLQDOLDELOLW\WRWKHWHDFKHUVZKLFKLVVDWLVILHGGXULQJWKHSDLGOHDYHRIDEVHQFH)XQGV
WR VHWWOH WKH REOLJDWLRQ ZKLFK DUH D OLDELOLW\ RI WKH %RDUG ZLOO EH UHLPEXUVHG E\ WKH
'HSDUWPHQWDQGWKHUHIRUHWKHUHLVDQRIIVHWWLQJUHFHLYDEOHGXHIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQW

0HDVXUHPHQWXQFHUWDLQW\DQGWKHXVHRIHVWLPDWHV
&DQDGLDQ SXEOLF VHFWRU DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV UHTXLUH PDQDJHPHQW WR PDNH HVWLPDWHV DQG
DVVXPSWLRQV WKDW DIIHFW WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DQG GLVFORVXUH RI
FRQWLQJHQW DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DW WKH GDWH RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG WKH UHSRUWHG
DPRXQWVRIUHYHQXHDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKH\HDU

0HDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ WKDW PD\ EH PDWHULDO WR WKHVH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV H[LVWV IRU WKH
OLDELOLW\ IRU HPSOR\HH IXWXUH EHQHILWV RI      EHFDXVH DFWXDO
H[SHULHQFHPD\GLIIHUVLJQLILFDQWO\IURPDFWXDULDODVVXPSWLRQV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 6XPPDU\RIVLJQLILFDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV FRQW¶G 

7KHVH HVWLPDWHV DQG DVVXPSWLRQV DUH UHYLHZHG SHULRGLFDOO\ DQG DV DGMXVWPHQWV EHFRPH
QHFHVVDU\WKH\DUHUHSRUWHGLQHDUQLQJVLQWKHSHULRGVLQZKLFKWKH\EHFRPHNQRZQ:KLOH
EHVW HVWLPDWHV DUH XVHG IRU UHSRUWLQJ LWHPV WR VXEMHFW WR PHDVXUHPHQW XQFHUWDLQW\ LW LV
UHDVRQDEO\SRVVLEOHWKDWFKDQJHVLQIXWXUHFRQGLWLRQVRFFXUULQJZLWKLQRQHILVFDO\HDUFRXOG
UHTXLUHPDWHULDOFKDQJHVLQWKHDPRXQWVUHFRJQL]HGRUGLVFORVHG


 2WKHUUHYHQXH



5HFRYHUDEOHVDODULHV
 
  

0LVFHOODQHRXV
 
  

5HQWDOV
 
  

6FKRRORYHUDJHUHLPEXUVHPHQWV
 
  


  
 
  






([SHQVHVE\GHSDUWPHQW



7KH IROORZLQJ LV D VXPPDU\ RI WKH H[SHQVHV UHSRUWHG RQ WKH VWDWHPHQW RI RSHUDWLRQV E\
GHSDUWPHQWH[FOXGLQJHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV

  


  


,QVWUXFWLRQDO
    
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
 
  

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
 
  

0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
     
(PSOR\HHEHQHILWV
     

  
    


 7UXVWIXQGV

7UXVWIXQGVDUHFRPSULVHGRIFRQWULEXWLRQVIURPYDULRXVVRXUFHVWKDWDUHDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH
(QWLW\ 7KH LQWHUHVW WKDW LV HDUQHG RQ WKH FRQWULEXWLRQV PD\ EH GLVEXUVHG IRU VSHFLILHG
HGXFDWLRQDO SXUSRVHV ,QYHVWPHQWV DUH UHFRUGHG DW FRVW DQG DUH FRPSULVHG RI *,&¶V &RVW
DSSUR[LPDWHVIDLUPDUNHWYDOXH
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 'HIHUUHGUHYHQXH



)XQGVGHVLJQDWHGIRU
 &DSLWDOIXQGLQJ
 
  

 6SHFLDOSURJUDPIXQGLQJ
 
  

 6WDIISURIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
 
  

 0DLQWHQDQFHZRUN
 
  

 6WXGHQWOHDGHUVKLSDQGVFKRROGHYHORSPHQW
 
  


  
     


 3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV

$Q DQDO\VLV RI WKH FRPSRQHQWV RI DQG FKDQJHV LQ SRVWHPSOR\PHQW EHQHILWV OLDELOLWLHV LV DV
IROORZV

  



5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH
 %DODQFH$SULO $SULO 
     

  $PRUWL]DWLRQRIDFWXDULDOJDLQ
 
  

  &XUUHQWVHUYLFHFRVW
 
  

  ,QWHUHVWDFFUXHG
 
  

  /HVVSD\PHQWVPDGH
 
   
 

 %DODQFH0DUFK ±0DUFK       

 9DFDWLRQSD\
 
  


  
     

8QDPRUWL]HGDFWXDULDODGMXVWPHQW
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 3RVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV FRQW¶G 

7KH UHWLUHPHQW DOORZDQFH EDODQFHV DUH EDVHG RQ DQ LQGHSHQGHQW DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ GDWHG
$SULOSURYLGHGWRWKH3HQVLRQDQG%HQHILWV'LYLVLRQRIWKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG
,VODQG&LYLO6HUYLFH&RPPLVVLRQ7KHUHSRUWZDVDPHQGHGIRUDFKDQJHLQWKHGLVFRXQWUDWH
WR EH XVHG LQ WKH YDOXDWLRQ RI WKH OLDELOLW\ WKH DPHQGPHQW ZDV GDWHG $SULO   7KH
3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQGSURMHFWVWKHWRWDOOLDELOLW\LQWKH\HDUVEHWZHHQWKHWULDQQXDO
DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQV 7KH DPHQGPHQW ZDV GDWHG $SULO   LV UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH 
SURMHFWLRQSUHSDUHGE\WKH3URYLQFHRI3ULQFH(GZDUG,VODQG

7KH HFRQRPLF DVVXPSWLRQV XVHG LQ GHWHUPLQLQJ WKH DFWXDULDO YDOXH RI DFFUXHG UHWLUHPHQW
DOORZDQFHVZHUHGHYHORSHGE\UHIHUHQFHWRH[SHFWHGORQJWHUPPDUNHWFRQGLWLRQV6LJQLILFDQW
DFWXDULDODVVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHYDOXDWLRQVDQGSURMHFWLRQVDUH

'LVFRXQWUDWH
SHUDQQXP
([SHFWHGLQIODWLRQUDWH
SHUDQQXP
([SHFWHGDYHUDJHUHPDLQLQJVHUYLFHOLIH
\HDUV


 *UDQWDOORFDWLRQVILJXUHV

7KH (QWLW\¶V DFWLYLWLHV DUH IXQGHG E\ WKH 'HSDUWPHQW 7KH DQQXDO JUDQW DOORFDWLRQ IURP WKH
'HSDUWPHQWSURYLGHVGHWDLOVDVWRWKHIXQGLQJDOORFDWLRQVIRUHDFKRSHUDWLRQDODUHDZLWKWKH
H[FHSWLRQRIVDODULHV7KHJUDQWIRUVDODULHVLVIRUDQDSSURYHGQXPEHURIIXOOWLPHHPSOR\HHV
IRUWKH(QWLW\)XQGLQJIRUWKHDSSURYHGQXPEHURISRVLWLRQVLVSURYLGHGE\7KH'HSDUWPHQW
EXW WKH DFWXDO GROODU YDOXH RI WKH DSSURYHG SRVLWLRQV LV QRW LQFOXGHG LQ WKH LGHQWLILHG JUDQW
6LQFHDGROODUYDOXHZDVQRWSURYLGHGIRUVDODULHVWKHJUDQWDVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKLVH[SHQGLWXUH
KDV EHHQ H[FOXGHG IURP WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV WKH IROORZLQJ ILJXUHV DUH WKH RSHUDWLRQDO
EXGJHWDOORFDWLRQVSURYLGHGE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWFRPSDUHGWRWKHDFWXDOUHVXOWVIRU

  


*UDQW  
$FWXDO
  

 DOORFDWLRQ   H[SHQGLWXUHV
  

E\FDWHJRU\   E\FDWHJRU\
  

 0DUFK  
0DUFK
  


  



$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
5HQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQW
3URJUDP
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQV
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
1RWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
0DUFK

 &RQWLQJHQF\

7KH%UDQFKKDVHOHFWHGWRVHOILQVXUHLWVHOIUHODWHGWRFROOLVLRQFRYHUDJH'XULQJWKH\HDUQR
HYHQWVZHUHUHSRUWHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHSROLFLHVRIWKHFROOLVLRQFRQWLQJHQF\IXQG

7KH%UDQFKKDVUHFHLYHGIXQGLQJIURPWKH'HSDUWPHQWWRIXQGH[SHQGLWXUHVZKLFKTXDOLI\IRU
WKH FROOLVLRQ FRQWLQJHQF\ IXQG 7KHVH IXQGV DUH EHLQJ GHIHUUHG RQ WKH EDODQFH VKHHW DQG
XQVSHQWIXQGVDUHUHSRUWHGDVUHVWULFWHGFDVK


 ,PSDFWVRI&29,'

6LQFH-DQXDU\WKHVSUHDGRI&29,'KDVVHYHUHO\LPSDFWHGPDQ\ORFDOHFRQRPLHV
DURXQG WKH JOREH ,Q PDQ\ FRXQWULHV LQFOXGLQJ &DQDGD EXVLQHVVHV DQG RUJDQL]DWLRQV DUH
EHLQJIRUFHGWRFHDVHRUOLPLWRSHUDWLRQVIRUORQJRULQGHILQLWHSHULRGVRIWLPH0HDVXUHVWDNHQ
WR FRQWDLQ WKH VSUHDG RI WKH YLUXV LQFOXGLQJ WUDYHO EDQV TXDUDQWLQHV VRFLDO GLVWDQFLQJ DQG
FORVXUHV RI QRQHVVHQWLDO VHUYLFHV KDYH WULJJHUHG VLJQLILFDQW GLVUXSWLRQV WR EXVLQHVVHV DQG
RUJDQL]DWLRQV ZRUOGZLGH UHVXOWLQJ LQ DQ HFRQRPLF VORZGRZQ 7KH GXUDWLRQ DQG LPSDFW RI WKH
&29,'SDQGHPLFUHPDLQVXQFOHDUDWWKLVWLPH

7KHRXWEUHDNRI&29,'DQGUHODWHGJOREDOUHVSRQVHVKDYHFDXVHGPDWHULDOGLVUXSWLRQVWR
RUJDQL]DWLRQV DURXQG WKH ZRUOG OHDGLQJ WR DQ HFRQRPLF VORZGRZQ 7KH %UDQFK¶V VFKRROV
UHRSHQHGLQ6HSWHPEHURIDQGDUHUXQQLQJDVSODQQHGZLWK&29,'SURWRFROVLQSODFH
7KHUH ZHUH DGGLWLRQDO FRVWV LQFXUUHG LQ WKH \HDU GXH WR SXEOLF KHDOWK PHDVXUHV DQG VFKRRO
UHRSHQLQJ SODQV ZKLFK KDV UHVXOWHG LQ DGGLWLRQDO IXQGLQJ &29,' KDV QRW KDG D PDWHULDO
LPSDFWRQWKHYDOXDWLRQRIWKH&RPSDQ\¶VDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDVRI0DUFK

7KH GXUDWLRQ DQG LPSDFW RI WKH &29,' SDQGHPLF DV ZHOO DV WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI
JRYHUQPHQW DQG FHQWUDO EDQN UHVSRQVHV UHPDLQV XQFOHDU DW WKLV WLPH ,W LV QRW SRVVLEOH WR
UHOLDEO\HVWLPDWHWKHGXUDWLRQDQGVHYHULW\RI WKHVHFRQVHTXHQFHVDVZHOODVWKHLULPSDFWRQ
WKHILQDQFLDOLPSDFWRQWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIWKH%UDQFKIRUIXWXUHSHULRGV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRIVDODULHVDQGEHQHILWVH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK



%UDQFKDGPLQLVWUDWLRQVXSSRUW
     
%UDQFKPDQDJHPHQW
 
  

,QVWUXFWLRQDO
     
0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQ
    

6FKRRODGPLQLVWUDWLRQVXSSRUW
 
  

(GXFDWLRQDODVVLVWDQWVDQG\RXWKVHUYLFHZRUNHUV
     
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ
 
  

%HQHILWV
     

  
     

5HWLUHPHQWDOORZDQFH
 
  


  
     

1RWH

%UDQFKDGPLQLVWUDWLRQVXSSRUWLQFOXGHVERDUGRIILFHFOHULFDODQGVHFUHWDULDOVWDII

%UDQFK PDQDJHPHQW LQFOXGHV GLUHFWRU RI 3XEOLF 6FKRROV %UDQFK GLUHFWRUV DQG OHDGHUV RI
VWXGHQW VHUYLFHV KXPDQ UHVRXUFHV FRUSRUDWH VHUYLFHV FRRUGLQDWRUV IRU ILQDQFLDO VHUYLFHV
SURSHUW\ VHUYLFHV DQG WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ DQG SURSHUW\ DQG WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ PDQDJHPHQW DQG
VXSHUYLVRUV

,QVWUXFWLRQDO VDODULHV LQFOXGH FRQVXOWDQWV SULQFLSDOV YLFHSULQFLSDOV GHSDUWPHQW KHDGV DQG
WHDFKHUV

0DLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQVVDODULHVLQFOXGHEXLOGLQJMDQLWRULDODQGPDLQWHQDQFHVWDII

6FKRRODGPLQLVWUDWLRQVXSSRUWLQFOXGHVVFKRROVHFUHWDULDOVWDII

7UDQVSRUWDWLRQVDODULHVLQFOXGHEXVGULYHUVWDII

%HQHILWVLQFOXGHWKHHPSOR\HU¶VVKDUHRI&DQDGDSHQVLRQDQGHPSOR\PHQWLQVXUDQFHJURXS
LQVXUDQFH ZRUNHUV¶ FRPSHQVDWLRQ SUHPLXPV SHQVLRQ DQG WHDFKHU VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ
SUHPLXPV
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRIPDLQWHQDQFHDQGRSHUDWLRQH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

%XLOGLQJUHSDLUV
(OHFWULFLW\
)LUHDQGVDIHW\
)XHOKHDWLQJ
*URXQGPDLQWHQDQFH
,QVXUDQFH
0LVFHOODQHRXV
3URSHUW\WD[HV
5HQWDOV
6HUYLFHFRQWUDFWVDQGSURIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHV
6HUYLFHYHKLFOHV
6HZHUDQGZDWHU
6QRZUHPRYDO
6XSSOLHV
7UDYHO
:DVWHGLVSRVDO
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRIWUDQVSRUWDWLRQH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

%XVSDUWVDQGUHSDLUV
&RPPXQLFDWLRQV
&RQWUDFWHGVHUYLFHV
([WUDFXUULFXODUWUDQVSRUWDWLRQ
)XHO

,QVXUDQFH
3URIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHV
6QRZUHPRYDO
6XSSOLHV
7UDYHO
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRILQVWUXFWLRQDOH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

$FDGHPLFVXSSOLHV
$UW

&RPSXWHUOLWHUDF\
&XUULFXOXPSURJUDPV
'XSOLFDWLQJVXSSOLHV
(QJOLVKDQGODQJXDJHDUWV
)UHQFK
*XLGDQFHDQGUHVRXUFH
+RPHHFRQRPLFVDQGIDPLO\OLYLQJ
,QGXVWULDODUWV
/LEUDU\DQGUHVRXUFHFHQWUHV
0DWKHPDWLFV
0XVLF
3K\VLFDOHGXFDWLRQ
6FLHQFH
6WXGHQWVHUYLFHV
9RFDWLRQDOHGXFDWLRQ
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRIDGPLQLVWUDWLRQH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

$GYHUWLVLQJ
&RXULHUVHUYLFHV
(TXDOFKDQFHVIRUOHDUQLQJ
*UDGXDWLRQ
,QVXUDQFH
0LVFHOODQHRXV
2IILFHVXSSOLHV
3RVWDOVHUYLFHV
3URIHVVLRQDOGHYHORSPHQW
3URIHVVLRQDOVHUYLFHV
3XEOLFVWDIIDQGVWXGHQWUHODWLRQV
7HOHSKRQH
7UDYHO 
7UXVWHHVUHPXQHUDWLRQ
7UXVWHHVWUDYHODQGRWKHU
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3XEOLF6FKRROV%UDQFK
6FKHGXOHRIUHQRYDWLRQVDQGHTXLSPHQWH[SHQVHV
<HDU(QGHG0DUFK

$XGLRYLVXDOHTXLSPHQW
&ODVVURRPIXUQLWXUHDQGHTXLSPHQW
&RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQW
0DLQWHQDQFHHTXLSPHQW
0LVFHOODQHRXVHTXLSPHQW
0XVLFDOLQVWUXPHQWV
2IILFHIXUQLWXUHDQGHTXLSPHQW
3OD\JURXQG
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